
 
A meeting of the CABINET will be held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, 
PATHFINDER HOUSE, ST MARY'S STREET, HUNTINGDON PE29 
3TN on THURSDAY, 8 JUNE 2006 at 11:30 AM and you are requested 
to attend for the transaction of the following business:- 

 
 

FOR INFORMATION ONLY 
 
 APOLOGIES 

 Contact 
(01480) 

  
1. MINUTES  (Pages 1 - 4) 
 

 

 To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 18th 
May 2006. 
 

Mrs H Taylor 
388008 

2. MEMBERS' INTERESTS   
 

 

 To receive from Members declarations as to personal and/or prejudicial 
interests and the nature of those interests in relation to any Agenda 
item.  Please see Notes 1 and 2 below. 
 

 

3. "GROWING SUCCESS" - CORPORATE PLAN AND 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING  (Pages 5 - 28) 

 

 

 To consider a report by the Head of Policy. 
 

I Leatherbarrow 
388005 

4. SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN, YOUNG PEOPLE AND 
VULNERABLE ADULTS  (Pages 29 - 52) 

 

 

 To consider a report by the Head of Personnel Services on the 
Protection Policy for Children, Young People and Vulnerable Adults. 
 

P Duerden 
388043 

5. MEDIUM TERM PLAN: REQUEST FOR THE RELEASE OF FUNDS  
(Pages 53 - 56) 

 

 

 By way of a report by the Head of Financial Services to consider a 
request for the release of funding for a Medium Term Plan Service. 
 

S Couper 
388103 

6. TREASURY MANAGEMENT ANNUAL REPORT 2005/06  (Pages 57 
- 64) 

 

 

 To consider a report by the Head of Financial Services reviewing the 
performance of the Investment Fund Managers. 
 

Mrs E Smith 
388157 

7. A14 ELLINGTON TO FEN DITTON IMPROVEMENT - HUNTINGDON 
VIADUCT TECHNICAL STUDY  (Pages 65 - 74) 

 

 

 To consider a report by the Planning Policy Manager outlining the 
results of the technical study on the implications of the retention or 
removal of the viaduct. 

S Bell 
388387 



 
 

8. WARBOYS CONSERVATION AREA: CHARACTER STATEMENT 
AND MANAGEMENT PLAN  (Pages 75 - 76) 

 

 

 To consider the Character Statement and Management Plan for 
Warboys and to approve it as a basis for further discussion and 
consultation. 
 
(A copy of the Character Statement and Management Plan is attached 
to the Agenda separately.) 
 

C Surfleet 
388476 

9. REPRESENTATION ON ORGANISATIONS  (Pages 77 - 84) 
 

 

 To consider a report by the Head of Administration in relation to the 
appointment/nomination of representatives to serve on a variety of 
organisations. 
 

H Taylor 
388008 

   
 Dated this 31st day of May 2006  
 

 

 

 Chief Executive 
 
 

 

Notes 
 
1.  A personal interest exists where a decision on a matter would affect to a greater extent 

than other people in the District – 
 

(a) the well-being, financial position, employment or business of the Councillor, a 
partner, relatives or close friends; 

 
 (b) a body employing those persons, any firm in which they are a partner and any 

company of which they are directors; 
 
 (c) any corporate body in which those persons have a beneficial interest in a class of 

securities exceeding the nominal value of £5,000; or 
 
 (d) the Councillor’s registerable financial and other interests. 
 
2. A personal interest becomes a prejudicial interest where a member of the public (who has 

knowledge of the circumstances) would reasonably regard the Member’s personal 
interest as being so significant that it is likely to prejudice the Councillor’s judgement of 
the public interest. 

 

Please contact Mrs H Taylor, Senior Democratic Services Officer, Tel No. 01480 388008/e-
mail Helen.Taylor@huntsdc.gov.uk  if you have a general query on any Agenda Item, wish 
to tender your apologies for absence from the meeting, or would like information on any 
decision taken by the Cabinet. 

Specific enquiries with regard to items on the Agenda should be directed towards the 
Contact Officer.  

Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting as observers except during 
consideration of confidential or exempt items of business. 



 
 
 

Agenda and enclosures can be viewed on the District Council’s website – 
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk (under Councils and Democracy). 

 
 

If you would like a translation of Agenda/Minutes/Reports or 
would like a large text version or an audio version  
please contact the Democratic Services Manager  

and we will try to accommodate your needs. 
 
 

Emergency Procedure 

In the event of the fire alarm being sounded and on the instruction of the Meeting Administrator, 
all attendees are requested to vacate the building via the closest emergency exit and to make 
their way to the base of the flagpole in the car park at the front of Pathfinder House. 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 
 MINUTES of the meeting of the CABINET held in the Council 

Chamber, Pathfinder House, St Mary's Street, Huntingdon PE29 3TN 
on Thursday, 18 May 2006. 

   
 PRESENT: Councillor I C Bates – Chairman. 
   
  Councillors P L E Bucknell, Mrs J Chandler, 

N J Guyatt, A Hansard, Mrs P J Longford, 
Mrs D C Reynolds, T V Rogers and 
L M Simpson. 

   
   
   

1. MINUTES   
 
 Subject to the inclusion of Councillor Mrs D C Reynolds and former 

Councillor D P Holley in the list of attendees, the Minutes of the 
meeting of the Cabinet held on 27th April 2006 were approved as a 
correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

2. MEMBERS' INTERESTS   
 
 Councillor A Hansard declared a personal interest in Minute No. 11 by 

virtue of his membership of St. Neots Town Council. 
 

3. APPOINTMENT OF EXECUTIVE COUNCILLORS   
 
 RESOLVED 

 
(a)     that executive responsibilities for the Municipal Year 

2006/07 be       allocated as follows -  
  

Finance  - Councillor T V Rogers 
Planning Strategy              - Councillor P L E Bucknell 
Environment and Transport - Councillor N J Guyatt 
Leisure - Councillor Mrs J Chandler 
Resources and Policy - Councillor A Hansard 
Housing and Public Health - Councillor Mrs D C Reynolds 
Headquarters and Information 

Technology 
- Councillor L M Simpson  

Operations - Councillor Mrs P J Longford. 
  

 
 (b) that the Leader of the Council be appointed to serve as ex-

officio Member of the Employment Panel; and 
 

(c) that Executive Councillors be appointed to serve as ex-
officio Members of Panels as follows - 

 
utive Councillors for- Ex-Officio for- 

Resources and Policy Licensing and Protection Panel 
ning Strategy Development Control Panel

  

Agenda Item 1

1



  

4. LEISURE CENTRE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEES   
 
 RESOLVED 

 
that for the Municipal Year 2006/07, Members be appointed to 
serve on the Leisure Centre Management Committees as 
follows – 
 
♦ Huntingdon Leisure Centre Management Committee 

 Councillors K Baker, Mrs J Chandler, J J Dutton, J D Fell, 
C R Hyams and Mrs S A Menczer  

 
♦ St Neots Leisure Centre Management Committee 

Councillors B E Boddington, Mrs J Chandler, R Eaton, A 
Hansard and Mrs P J Longford 

 
♦ St Ivo Leisure Centre Management Committee 

Councillors J D Ablewhite, J T Bell, Mrs J Chandler, S J 
Criswell, J W Davies and C J Stephens 

 
♦ Ramsey Leisure Centre Management Committee 

Councillors E R Butler, Mrs J Chandler, I R Muir, R Powell 
and P A Swales 

 
♦ Sawtry Leisure Centre Management Committee 

Councillors Mrs M Banerjee, Mrs J Chandler, J E Garner, 
P G Mitchell and J S Watt. 

 
5. COUNTRYSIDE JOINT GROUP   
 
 RESOLVED 

 
(a) that Hinchingbrooke Country Park Joint Liaison Group 

be reconstituted as the Countryside Joint Group to 
consider all matters related to country, riverside and 
other parks and open spaces; and 

(b) that Councillors M G Baker, Mrs M Banerjee, Mrs J 
Chandler and J D Fell be appointed to serve on the 
Group for the ensuing Municipal Year.  

 
6. HUNTINGDONSHIRE ENVIRONMENT AND TRANSPORT AREA 

JOINT COMMITTEE   
 
 RESOLVED 

 
that Councillors M G Baker, N J Guyatt, Mrs P J Longford, M F 
Newman, K Reynolds and T D Sanderson be nominated to 
serve on the Huntingdonshire Environment and Transport 
Area Joint Committee for the ensuing Municipal Year. 

 
7. CUSTOMER FIRST AND ACCOMMODATION ADVISORY GROUP   
 
 RESOLVED 

 
(a) that the existing Customer First and New Headquarters 

2



Advisory Groups be merged to form the Customer First 
and Accommodation Advisory Group; and 

(b) that Councillors I C Bates, P L E Bucknell, S J Criswell, 
P J Downes, K Reynolds, T V Rogers and L M 
Simpson be appointed to serve on the Advisory Group 
for the ensuing Municipal Year. 

 
8. MEMBERS' ADVISORY GROUP FOR PUBLIC CONVENIENCES   
 
 RESOLVED 

 
that Councillors Mrs J Chandler, N J Guyatt, Mrs P Longford 
and L M Simpson be appointed to serve on the Members’ 
Advisory Group for Public Conveniences for the ensuing 
Municipal Year. 

 
9. DEVELOPMENT PLAN POLICY ADVISORY GROUP   
 
 RESOLVED 

 
that Councillors I C Bates, P L E Bucknell, P J Downes, N J 
Guyatt, P G Mitchell, J M Sadler and P A Swales be appointed 
to serve on the Development Plan Advisory Group for the 
ensuing Municipal Year. 

 
10. SAFETY ADVISORY GROUP   
 
 RESOLVED 

 
that Councillors Mrs D E Collins, J W Davies, A Hansard, K 
Reynolds and L M Simpson be appointed to serve on the 
Safety Advisory Group for the ensuing Municipal Year. 

 
11. DEVELOPMENT BRIEF:   OLD FIRE STATION, ST NEOTS   
 
 Consideration was given to a report by the Head of Planning Services 

(a copy of which is appended in the Minute Book) to which was 
attached a schedule summarising those representations received 
during consultation on the Urban Design Framework which would 
guide the redevelopment of land in and around the old Fire Station 
site in St Neots. 
 
Having considered the responses received and in noting that the 
relocation of the waste disposal depot and issues surrounding the 
provision of a high quality recreational area along with additional car 
parking would be addressed through the planning process, the 
Cabinet 
 
RESOLVED 
 

(a) that the Planning Policy Manager be authorised, after 
consultation with the Executive Councillor for Planning 
Strategy, to approve the text and illustrations of the 
Development Brief document to incorporate the 
responses referred to in Annex 1 to the report now 
submitted and any minor consequential amendments; 
and 

3



(b) that, following on from (a) above, the Development 
Brief for the old Fire Station site in St Neots (as 
amended) be adopted as Interim Planning Guidance. 

 
12. URBAN DESIGN FRAMEWORK AND MASTERPLAN - ST. MARY'S 

VILLAGE, ST. NEOTS   
 
 Having considered a report by the Head of Planning Services to 

which was attached a development brief for land to the west of St 
Mary’s Church, St. Neots (copies of both documents are appended in 
the Minute Book), the Cabinet 
 
RESOLVED 
 

that the Urban Design Framework for St Mary’s Village be 
approved for consultation. 

 
13. QUARTERLY SUMMARY OF DEBTS WRITTEN OFF   
 
 The Cabinet received and noted the report by the Head of Revenue 

Services (a copy of which is appended in the Minute Book) 
summarising debts which had been written off during January – 
March 2006 as irrecoverable. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 
 

4



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
SERVICE DELIVERY PANEL      6TH JUNE 2006 
 
CABINET        8TH JUNE 2006 
 
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
SERVICE SUPPORT PANEL    13TH JUNE 2006 
 
 

“GROWING SUCCESS” — CORPORATE PLAN AND 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING 
(Report by the Head of Policy) 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to present to Members — 
 

• a suggested process for reviewing and updating “Growing Success” – the 
Council’s Corporate Plan; 

• end of year results for local and national performance indicators; 
• the opportunity to endorse targets and measures pending the outcome of 

the review of “Growing Success”. 
 
2. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
2.1 The Council have adopted a corporate plan – “Growing Success” – which includes 

a series of measures or local performance indicators to help judge levels of 
success in achieving priorities.  “Growing Success” provides the context for the 
Council’s comprehensive performance management framework.  This framework 
provides for quarterly reporting of progress against targets so that any necessary 
remedial action can be taken.  The framework also provides for an end-of-year 
review of the plan, results and targets so that the Council are focused on 
achieving their priorities. 

 
2.2 As part of the early stages of the annual review, it became apparent that the 

objectives which support the Council’s priorities and outcomes needed to be 
more specific and understandable.  Training undertaken with Executive 
Councillors suggested that the Council’s objectives could be updated and 
presented in a format which linked them with significant activities or projects, 
along with the underlying “day-to-day” activities set out in service plans.  In 
addition, Executive Councillors felt that members of the Overview & Scrutiny 
Panels should have a close involvement in the review of the objectives prior to 
presentation to Cabinet and Council. 

 
3. THE WAY FORWARD 
 
3.1 It is proposed that a short training and development programme should be 

carried out in mid to late June for members of the Overview & Scrutiny Panels 
along the lines recently carried out for Executive Councillors.  This training would 
take place in two sessions –  
 
• Initially, the Chairman of each of the Service Delivery and Service Support 

Panels along with 2/3 members of each Panel would undertake training on 
the process of reviewing objectives and developing the performance 
management system.  This group would then take on the role previously 

Agenda Item 3

5



 

 2

undertaken by the Comprehensive Performance Assessment Improvement 
Plan Group – to lead on the review of the Council’s objectives, 
improvement plan and the development of the performance management 
framework. 

 
• Thereafter, all other members of the two Panels would be offered a ½ day 

course on priority and objective settings and developing performance 
management within the Council. 

 
3.2 Between June and September there will be the opportunity for a detailed review 

by Members and Officers of the Corporate Plan, local performance indicators and 
targets, the Improvement Plan and the objectives supporting the achievement of 
the Council’s priorities.  The review will be informed also by the results of 
external assessments such as the “Use of Resources” and “Direction of Travel” 
Statement which will be presented to the Corporate Governance Panel at its 
meeting on 27th June. 

 
3.3 In the meantime, to meet requirements in terms of publishing national 

performance data, both the Overview & Scrutiny Panels, Cabinet and Council will 
receive and consider end-of-year results for local and national performance 
indicators and agree targets for the forthcoming year.  

 
3.4 The timetable for this process is as follows — 
 
 Date Activity 
 
 23rd May Consideration of performance in the achievement 

of local and national indicators and the 
Improvement Plan by the Chief Officers 
Management Team 

 
 6th & 13th June Consideration of performance in the achievement 

of local and national indicators and the 
Improvement Plan by the Overview & Scrutiny 
Panels 

 
 8th June Consideration of performance in the achievement 

of local and national indicators and the 
Improvement Plan by Cabinet 

 
 12th June COMT to commence review of Corporate Plan 
 
 mid to late June Member training 
 
 23rd June Consideration of performance in the achievement 

of local and national indicators and the 
Improvement Plan by Council 

 
 June to September Review of Corporate Plan, BVPIs, Improvement 

Plan, etc by Officers and members of Overview & 
Scrutiny Panels. 

 

6



 

 3

 5th September Overview & Scrutiny (Corporate & Strategic 
Framework) Panel consider updated Corporate 
Plan 

 
 7th September Cabinet consider updated Corporate Plan 
 
 27th September Council consider and adopt updated Corporate 

Plan. 
 
4. PERFORMANCE DATA 
 
4.1 The following performance data is appended for consideration: 
 

• Appendix A is a schedule of the national Best Value Performance Indicators 
for 2005/06. 

• Appendix B shows the end-of-year results for the Council’s local measures 
or performance indicators as set out in the Corporate Plan – “Growing 
Success”. 

 
  (Note:  A report on the complete results of the annual survey along with 

the recent quality of life survey will be published in time for the review of 
the Corporate Plan.) 

 
• Appendix C provides a summary of achievement for the action plans which 

comprise the Council’s Improvement Plan.   
 

4.2 The schedules have been colour coded as follows:- 
 

• green – achieving target or above; 
• amber – between target and an “intervention level (the level at which 

performance is considered to be unacceptable and action is required); 
• red – the intervention level or below; and 
• grey – data is currently unavailable. 

 
5. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
5.1 Members are recommended to – 
 

• endorse the suggested process for reviewing and updating the Corporate 
Plan; and 

• receive and consider the results of performance data for the year 2005/06 
and endorse proposed targets for 2006/07 and onwards. 

 
 
 
 
Background Papers 
“Growing Success” – Corporate Plan 
 
Contact Officers: Ian Leatherbarrow, Head of Policy  
   � (01480) 388005 
   Howard Thackray, Policy & Research Manager  
   � (01480) 388035 

7



8

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
P

P
EN

D
IX

 A
 

N
at

io
na

l B
es

t V
al

ue
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

 fo
r 2

00
5/

06
 

 
Ta

rg
et

s 
  

 
B

es
t V

al
ue

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
In

di
ca

to
r 

 

A
ct

u
al

 
20

04
/5

 
Tr

en
d 

 
 0

4/
05

 
V 

05
/0

6 

A
ct

ua
l 

20
05

/0
6 

05
/0

6 
06

/0
7 

07
/0

8
08

/0
9

C
om

m
en

ts
 

 
O

ur
 O

ve
ra

ll 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

2a
 

Th
e 

le
ve

l o
f 

th
e 

Eq
ua

lit
y 

St
an

da
rd

 f
or

 L
oc

al
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t 
to

 w
hi

ch
 t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
co

nf
or

m
s 

1 
 

1 
1 

1 
2 

2 
 

2b
 

Th
e 

du
ty

 t
o 

pr
om

ot
e 

ra
ce

 
eq

ua
lit

y 
ch

ec
k 

lis
t 

sc
or

e 
68

%
 

 
68

%
 

68
%

 
74

%
 

79
%

 
79

%
 

 

8 

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
in

vo
ic

es
 f

or
 

go
od

s 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 t

ha
t 

w
er

e 
pa

id
 b

y 
th

e 
Co

un
ci

l w
ith

in
 3

0 
da

ys
 o

f 
su

ch
 in

vo
ic

es
 b

ei
ng

 
re

ce
iv

ed
. 

96
.3

%
 

 
97

.3
%

 
97

%
 

97
.5

%
 

98
%

 
98

%
 

To
p 

Q
ua

rt
ile

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
20

04
/0

5 
 

9 
Th

e 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f 

Co
un

ci
l T

ax
 

co
lle

ct
ed

 
98

.1
%

 
 

98
.6

%
 

98
.4

%
 

98
.6

%
 

98
.6

%
 

98
.7

%
 

 

10
 

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
no

n-
do

m
es

tic
 r

at
es

 d
ue

 f
or

 t
he

 
fin

an
ci

al
 y

ea
r 

w
hi

ch
 w

er
e 

re
ce

iv
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

Co
un

ci
l 

99
.1

%
 

 
99

.1
%

 
99

.2
%

 
99

.3
%

 
99

.4
%

 
99

.4
%

 
 

18
0a

(i)
 

Ac
tu

al
/'T

yp
ic

al
' e

ne
rg

y 
co

ns
um

pt
io

n 
in

 C
ou

nc
il 

bu
ild

in
gs

 -
 e

le
ct

ric
ity

  
15

4.
3

%
 

14
3.

6%
15

0%
 

 
 

 
D

el
et

ed
 f

ro
m

 2
00

6/
07

 

9



Ta
rg

et
s 

  
 

B
es

t V
al

ue
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

In
di

ca
to

r 
 

A
ct

u
al

 
20

04
/5

 
Tr

en
d 

 
 0

4/
05

 
V 

05
/0

6 

A
ct

ua
l 

20
05

/0
6 

05
/0

6 
06

/0
7 

07
/0

8
08

/0
9

C
om

m
en

ts
 

18
0a

(ii
) 

Ac
tu

al
/'T

yp
ic

al
' e

ne
rg

y 
co

ns
um

pt
io

n 
in

 C
ou

nc
il 

bu
ild

in
gs

 -
 f

os
si

l f
ue

ls
  

53
%

 
 

65
%

 
54

%
 

 
 

 
D

el
et

ed
 f

ro
m

 2
00

6/
07

 

 
Pe

op
le

 S
ta

tis
tic

s 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
11

a 
Th

e 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
in

 t
he

 t
op

 5
 p

er
 c

en
t 

of
 e

ar
ne

rs
 

th
at

 a
re

 w
om

en
  

14
.2

9
%

 
16

.2
2%

15
%

 
16

%
 

20
%

 
20

%
 

Bo
tt

om
 Q

ua
rt

ile
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

20
04

/0
5 

 

11
b 

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

in
 t

he
 t

op
 5

 p
er

 c
en

t 
of

 e
ar

ne
rs

 
th

at
 a

re
 f

ro
m

 e
th

ni
c 

m
in

or
iti

es
  

0%
 

 
2.

78
%

 
3%

 
3%

 
3%

 
3%

 
Bo

tt
om

 Q
ua

rt
ile

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
20

04
/0

5 

11
c 

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

in
 t

he
 t

op
 5

 p
er

 c
en

t 
of

 e
ar

ne
rs

 
w

ith
 a

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 

 
 

2.
78

%
 

 
3%

 
3%

 
3%

 
N

ew
 f

or
 2

00
5/

06
 

12
 

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 w

or
ki

ng
 

da
ys

/s
hi

ft
s 

lo
st

 t
o 

si
ck

ne
ss

 
ab

se
nc

e 
8.

26
 

 
7.

08
 

7 
7 

7 
7 

To
p 

Q
ua

rt
ile

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
20

04
/0

5 

14
 

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
co

un
ci

l 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

re
tir

in
g 

ea
rly

 
(e

xc
lu

di
ng

 il
l-h

ea
lth

 
re

tir
em

en
ts

) 
as

 a
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 
th

e 
to

ta
l w

or
k 

fo
rc

e 
in

 t
he

 lo
ca

l 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t 
pe

ns
io

n 
sc

he
m

e 

0.
16

%
 

 
0.

31
%

 
0.

45
%

0.
45

%
 

0.
45

%
 

.4
5%

 
To

p 
Q

ua
rt

ile
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

20
04

/0
5 

 

15
 

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

re
tir

in
g 

on
 g

ro
un

ds
 o

f 
ill

 h
ea

lth
 

as
 a

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 t

he
 t

ot
al

 
0%

 
 

0%
 

0.
35

%
0.

35
%

 
0.

35
%

 
.3

5%
 

To
p 

Q
ua

rt
ile

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
20

04
/0

5 
 

10



Ta
rg

et
s 

  
 

B
es

t V
al

ue
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

In
di

ca
to

r 
 

A
ct

u
al

 
20

04
/5

 
Tr

en
d 

 
 0

4/
05

 
V 

05
/0

6 

A
ct

ua
l 

20
05

/0
6 

05
/0

6 
06

/0
7 

07
/0

8
08

/0
9

C
om

m
en

ts
 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 

16
a 

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
co

un
ci

l 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

de
cl

ar
in

g 
th

at
 t

he
y 

m
ee

t 
th

e 
di

sa
bi

lit
y 

de
fin

iti
on

 in
 

th
e 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 D

is
cr

im
in

at
io

n 
Ac

t 
19

95
  

4.
37

%
 

 
3.

15
%

 
3%

 
3%

 
3%

 
3%

 
 T

op
 Q

ua
rt

ile
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

20
04

/0
5 

16
b 

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
th

e 
ec

on
om

ic
al

ly
 a

ct
iv

e 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

w
ho

 h
av

e 
di

sa
bi

lit
ie

s.
  

 

10
.5

%
 

 
10

.5
%

 
10

.5
%

 
10

.5
%

 
10

.5
%

 
10

.5
%

 
 

17
a 

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
co

un
ci

l 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

fr
om

 e
th

ni
c 

m
in

or
ity

 
ba

ck
gr

ou
nd

. 
 

4.
37

%
 

 
1.

76
%

 
2%

 
2%

 
2.

7%
 

2.
7%

 
Th

e 
fig

ur
e 

fo
r 

04
/0

5 
w

as
 

1.
7%

 n
ot

 t
he

 4
.3

7%
 

re
po

rt
ed

 

17
b 

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f t
he

 
ec

on
om

ic
al

ly
 a

ct
iv

e 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

w
ho

 a
re

 fr
om

 a
n 

et
hn

ic
 m

in
or

ity
 

ba
ck

gr
ou

nd
. 

2.
7%

 
 

2.
7%

 
2.

7%
 

2.
7%

 
2.

7%
 

2.
7%

 
 

 
W

as
te

 C
ol

le
ct

io
n 

&
 

R
ec

yc
lin

g 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

82
ai

 
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f 

ho
us

eh
ol

d 
w

as
te

 
w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
be

en
 s

en
t 

fo
r 

re
cy

cl
in

g.
 

21
.1

3
%

 
25

%
 

21
%

 
25

%
 

25
%

 
25

%
 

To
p 

Q
ua

rt
ile

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
20

04
/0

5 

82
ai

i 
To

ta
l t

on
na

ge
 o

f 
ho

us
eh

ol
d 

 
 

16
,3

24
  

 
17

10
0 

17
60

0 
18

,1
00

N
ew

 f
or

 2
00

5/
06

 

11



Ta
rg

et
s 

  
 

B
es

t V
al

ue
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

In
di

ca
to

r 
 

A
ct

u
al

 
20

04
/5

 
Tr

en
d 

 
 0

4/
05

 
V 

05
/0

6 

A
ct

ua
l 

20
05

/0
6 

05
/0

6 
06

/0
7 

07
/0

8
08

/0
9

C
om

m
en

ts
 

w
as

te
 s

en
t 

fo
r 

re
cy

cl
in

g 

82
bi

 

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
ho

us
eh

ol
d 

w
as

te
 f

or
 c

om
po

st
in

g 
or

 
tr

ea
tm

en
t 

by
 a

na
er

ob
ic

 
di

ge
st

io
n 

11
.5

%
 

 
23

%
 

27
.5

%
 

27
%

 
30

%
 

30
%

 
To

p 
Q

ua
rt

ile
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

20
04

/0
5 

82
bi

i 

Th
e 

to
nn

ag
e 

of
 h

ou
se

ho
ld

 
w

as
te

 s
en

t 
by

 t
he

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
fo

r 
co

m
po

st
in

g 
or

 t
re

at
m

en
t 

by
 

an
ae

ro
bi

c 
di

ge
st

io
n 

 
 

15
,5

7
2 

 
18

,4
50

 
21

,1
00

21
,7

50
N

ew
 f

or
 2

00
5/

06
 

82
di

 
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f 

ho
us

eh
ol

d 
w

as
te

 
th

at
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

la
nd

fil
le

d 
 

 
52

%
 

 
48

%
 

45
%

 
45

%
 

N
ew

 f
or

 2
00

5/
06

 

82
di

i 
Th

e 
to

nn
ag

e 
of

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
 

w
as

te
 a

ris
in

gs
 t

ha
t 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
la

nd
fil

le
d 

 
 

34
,4

3
1 

 
32

,8
00

 
31

,6
50

32
,6

00
N

ew
 f

or
 2

00
5/

06
 

84
 

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 k

ilo
gr

am
s 

of
 

ho
us

eh
ol

d 
w

as
te

 c
ol

le
ct

ed
 p

er
 

he
ad

 

37
3.

2
1

kg
 

 
41

0
kg

 
38

0k
g 

42
5k

g 
43

5k
g 

45
0k

g 
To

p 
Q

ua
rt

ile
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

20
04

/0
5 

84
b 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 c

ha
ng

e 
fr

om
 t

he
 

pr
ev

io
us

 f
in

an
ci

al
 y

ea
r 

in
 t

he
 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 k

ilo
gr

am
s 

of
 

ho
us

eh
ol

d 
w

as
te

 c
ol

le
ct

ed
 p

er
 

he
ad

 o
f 

th
e 

po
pu

la
tio

n 

 
 

8.
3%

 
 

3.
6%

 
2.

4%
 

3
.4

%
 

N
ew

 f
o
r 

2
0
0
5
/0

6
 

86
 

Th
e 

co
st

 o
f 

w
as

te
 c

ol
le

ct
io

n 
pe

r 
ho

us
eh

ol
d 

 
£5

4.
4

5 
 

£6
2.

78
*

£6
6.

27
 

£6
6.

63
 

£6
9.

19
£7

1.
82

B
o
tt

o
m

 Q
u
ar

ti
le

 b
as

ed
 

o
n
 2

0
0
4
/0

5
 

12



Ta
rg

et
s 

  
 

B
es

t V
al

ue
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

In
di

ca
to

r 
 

A
ct

u
al

 
20

04
/5

 
Tr

en
d 

 
 0

4/
05

 
V 

05
/0

6 

A
ct

ua
l 

20
05

/0
6 

05
/0

6 
06

/0
7 

07
/0

8
08

/0
9

C
om

m
en

ts
 

91
a 

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

se
rv

ed
 b

y 
ke

rb
si

de
 c

ol
le

ct
io

n 
of

 
re

cy
cl

ab
le

s 
(o

ne
 o

r 
m

or
e 

re
cy

cl
ab

le
) 

97
.0

2
%

 
10

0
%

 
10

0%
 

10
0%

 
10

0%
 

10
0%

 
 

91
b 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

 
se

rv
ed

 b
y 

ke
rb

si
de

 c
ol

le
ct

io
n 

of
 

at
 le

as
t 

tw
o 

re
cy

cl
ab

le
s.

 (
tw

o 
or

 m
or

e 
re

cy
cl

ab
le

s)
 

 
 

10
0

%
 

10
0%

 
10

0%
 

10
0%

 
10

0%
 

N
ew

 f
or

 2
00

5/
06

 

19
9a

 

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
la

nd
 a

nd
 

hi
gh

w
ay

s 
as

se
ss

ed
 a

s 
ha

vi
ng

 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 o
r 

he
av

y 
co

m
bi

ne
d 

de
po

si
ts

 o
f 

lit
te

r 
an

d 
de

tr
it

u
s 

(e
g,

 s
an

d,
 s

ilt
 a

nd
 

ot
he

r 
de

br
is

) 
th

at
 f

al
l b

el
ow

 a
n 

ac
ce

pt
ab

le
 le

ve
l. 

 

7%
 

 
7%

 
12

%
 

10
%

 
10

%
 

10
%

 
To

p 
Q

ua
rt

ile
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

20
04

/0
5 

 

19
9b

 

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
re

le
va

nt
 

la
nd

 a
nd

 h
ig

hw
ay

s 
fr

om
 w

hi
ch

 
un

ac
ce

pt
ab

le
 le

ve
ls

 o
f 

gr
af

fi
ti

 
ar

e 
vi

si
bl

e.
 

 
 

1%
 

 
1%

 
1%

 
1%

 
 

N
ew

 f
or

 2
00

5/
06

 
 

19
9c

 

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
re

le
va

nt
 

la
nd

 a
nd

 h
ig

hw
ay

s 
fr

om
 w

hi
ch

 
un

ac
ce

pt
ab

le
 le

ve
ls

 o
f 

fl
y-

po
st

in
g 

ar
e 

vi
si

bl
e.

 

 
 

0%
 

 
0%

 
0%

 
0%

 
N

ew
 f

or
 2

00
5/

06
 

 

 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
21

6a
 

N
um

be
r 

of
 ‘s

ite
s 

of
 p

ot
en

tia
l 

 
 

17
6 

 
16

0 
15

5 
15

0 
N

ew
 f

or
 2

00
5/

06
 

13



Ta
rg

et
s 

  
 

B
es

t V
al

ue
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

In
di

ca
to

r 
 

A
ct

u
al

 
20

04
/5

 
Tr

en
d 

 
 0

4/
05

 
V 

05
/0

6 

A
ct

ua
l 

20
05

/0
6 

05
/0

6 
06

/0
7 

07
/0

8
08

/0
9

C
om

m
en

ts
 

co
nc

er
n’

 in
 t

he
 lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

ar
ea

 w
ith

 r
es

pe
ct

 t
o 

la
nd

 
co

nt
am

in
at

io
n.

  
 

21
6b

 

N
um

be
r 

of
 s

ite
s 

fo
r 

w
hi

ch
 

su
ff

ic
ie

nt
 d

et
ai

le
d 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

is
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 d

ec
id

e 
w

he
th

er
 

re
m

ed
ia

tio
n 

of
 t

he
 la

nd
 is

 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y,

 a
s 

a 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f 

‘s
ite

s 
of

 p
ot

en
tia

l c
on

ce
rn

’. 

 
 

36
%

 
 

35
%

 
34

%
 

33
%

 
N

ew
 f

or
 2

00
5/

06
 

21
7 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
po

llu
tio

n 
co

nt
ro

l 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 t

o 
ex

is
tin

g 
in

st
al

la
tio

ns
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 o
n 

tim
e 

 
 

99
%

 
 

98
%

 
98

%
 

98
%

 
N

ew
 f

or
 2

00
5/

06
 

21
8a

 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
ne

w
 r

ep
or

ts
 o

f 
ab

an
do

ne
d 

ve
hi

cl
es

 
in

ve
st

ig
at

ed
 w

ith
in

 2
4h

rs
 o

f 
no

tif
ic

at
io

n 

 
 

97
.7

1%
 

98
%

 
98

%
 

98
%

 
N

ew
 f

or
 2

00
5/

06
 

21
8b

 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
ab

an
do

ne
d 

ve
hi

cl
es

 r
em

ov
ed

 w
ith

in
 2

4 
ho

ur
s 

fr
om

 t
he

 p
oi

nt
 a

t 
w

hi
ch

 
co

un
ci

l i
s 

le
ga

lly
 e

nt
itl

ed
 t

o 
re

m
ov

e 
th

e 
ve

hi
cl

e 

 
 

79
%

 
 

79
%

 
80

%
 

80
%

 
N

ew
 f

or
 2

00
5/

06
 

 
A

cc
es

s 
to

 C
ou

nc
il 

Se
rv

ic
es

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

14



Ta
rg

et
s 

  
 

B
es

t V
al

ue
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

In
di

ca
to

r 
 

A
ct

u
al

 
20

04
/5

 
Tr

en
d 

 
 0

4/
05

 
V 

05
/0

6 

A
ct

ua
l 

20
05

/0
6 

05
/0

6 
06

/0
7 

07
/0

8
08

/0
9

C
om

m
en

ts
 

15
6 

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
co

un
ci

l 
bu

ild
in

gs
 o

pe
n 

to
 t

he
 p

ub
lic

 in
 

w
hi

ch
 a

ll 
pu

bl
ic

 a
re

as
 a

re
 

su
ita

bl
e 

fo
r 

an
d 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 t

o 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s.

 

12
%

 
 

12
%

 
12

%
 

18
%

 
18

%
 

18
%

 
Ta

rg
et

 in
 2

00
8/

09
 d

oe
s 

no
t 

re
fle

ct
 n

ew
 h

ea
dq

ua
rt

er
s 

15
7 

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 t

yp
es

 o
f 

in
te

ra
ct

io
ns

 t
ha

t 
ar

e 
en

ab
le

d 
fo

r 
el

ec
tr

on
ic

 d
el

iv
er

y 
as

 a
 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
th

e 
ty

pe
s 

of
 

in
te

ra
ct

io
ns

 t
ha

t 
ar

e 
le

ga
lly

 
pe

rm
is

si
bl

e 
fo

r 
el

ec
tr

on
ic

 
de

liv
er

y 

69
.4

4
%

 
99

.6
%

 
10

0%
 

 
 

 
D

el
et

ed
 f

or
 2

00
6/

07
 

 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d 
A

dv
ic

e 
Se

rv
ic

e 
 

 
 

 
 

17
7 

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
co

un
ci

l 
gr

an
ts

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

le
ga

l a
dv

ic
e 

fo
r 

lo
ca

l r
es

id
en

ts
 t

ha
t 

ha
ve

 
be

en
 a

w
ar

de
d 

th
e 

Q
ua

lit
y 

M
ar

k 
an

d 
m

ee
t 

a 
pr

io
rit

y 
le

ga
l n

ee
d 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 t
he

 C
om

m
un

ity
 

Le
ga

l S
er

vi
ce

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

pl
an

. 

42
.4

%
 

 
49

.2
%

 
44

.3
%

 
44

.3
%

 
44

.3
%

 
44

.3
%

 
 

 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
af

et
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

12
6 

D
om

es
tic

 b
ur

gl
ar

ie
s 

pe
r 

1,
00

0 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

.  
 

6.
74

 
 

6.
08

 
8.

19
 

7.
76

 
7.

33
 

 
To

p 
Q

ua
rt

ile
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

20
04

/0
5 

15



Ta
rg

et
s 

  
 

B
es

t V
al

ue
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

In
di

ca
to

r 
 

A
ct

u
al

 
20

04
/5

 
Tr

en
d 

 
 0

4/
05

 
V 

05
/0

6 

A
ct

ua
l 

20
05

/0
6 

05
/0

6 
06

/0
7 

07
/0

8
08

/0
9

C
om

m
en

ts
 

12
7a

 
Vi

ol
en

t 
cr

im
e 

pe
r 

10
00

 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

 
 

10
.6

4 
13

.5
7 

12
.9

2 
12

.2
6 

 
N

ew
 f

or
 2

00
5/

06
 

12
7b

 
Vi

ol
en

t 
of

fe
nc

es
 in

 a
 p

ub
lic

 
pl

ac
e 

pe
r 

10
00

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

 
 

0.
27

 
0.

28
 

0.
28

 
0.

28
 

 
N

ew
 f

or
 2

00
5/

06
 

12
8 

Ve
hi

cl
e 

cr
im

es
 p

er
 1

00
0 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
8.

8 
 

7.
35

 
9.

99
 

9.
27

 
8.

56
 

 
 

16
6 

Sc
or

e 
ag

ai
ns

t 
a 

ch
ec

kl
is

t 
of

 
en

fo
rc

em
en

t 
be

st
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

fo
r 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 

90
%

 
 

90
%

 
10

0%
 

10
0%

 
10

0%
 

10
0%

 
 

17
4 

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 r

ac
ia

l i
nc

id
en

ts
 

re
co

rd
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l p

er
 

10
0,

00
0 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
in

 r
es

pe
ct

 
of

 c
ou

nc
il 

se
rv

ic
es

 

1.
87

 
 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
 

17
5 

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
ra

ci
al

 
in

ci
de

nt
s 

th
at

 r
es

ul
te

d 
in

 
fu

rt
he

r 
ac

tio
n 

10
0

%
 

 
N

/A
 

10
0%

 
10

0%
 

10
0%

 
10

0%
 

 

22
5 

Ac
tio

ns
 A

ga
in

st
 D

om
es

tic
 

Vi
ol

en
ce

 c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 n
at

io
na

l 
ch

ec
k 

lis
t 

 
 

91
%

 
 

91
%

 
91

%
 

91
%

 
N

ew
 f

or
 2

00
5/

06
 

 
H

ou
si

ng
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

64
 

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 p

riv
at

e 
se

ct
or

 
va

ca
nt

 d
w

el
lin

gs
 t

ha
t 

ar
e 

re
tu

rn
ed

 in
to

 o
cc

up
at

io
n 

or
 

de
m

ol
is

he
d 

du
rin

g 
20

04
/0

5 
as

 

64
 

 
77

 
12

 
70

 
70

 
70

 
To

p 
Q

ua
rt

ile
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

20
04

/0
5 

16



Ta
rg

et
s 

  
 

B
es

t V
al

ue
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

In
di

ca
to

r 
 

A
ct

u
al

 
20

04
/5

 
Tr

en
d 

 
 0

4/
05

 
V 

05
/0

6 

A
ct

ua
l 

20
05

/0
6 

05
/0

6 
06

/0
7 

07
/0

8
08

/0
9

C
om

m
en

ts
 

a 
di

re
ct

 r
es

ul
t 

of
 a

ct
io

n 
by

 t
he

 
co

un
ci

l 

18
3a

 
Th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
le

ng
th

 o
f 

st
ay

 in
 

be
d 

&
 b

re
ak

fa
st

 –
 (

w
ee

ks
) 

5 
 

5 
5 

4 
3 

2 
Bo

tt
om

 Q
ua

rt
ile

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
20

04
/0

5 

18
3b

 
Th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
le

ng
th

 o
f 

st
ay

 in
 

ho
st

el
s 

– 
(w

ee
ks

) 
15

 
 

13
 

13
 

12
 

10
 

8 
 

76
.a

 
Th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 B
en

ef
it 

cl
ai

m
an

ts
 v

is
ite

d 
pe

r 
1,

00
0 

ca
se

s 
 

20
3.

4
9 

 
21

7.
5

7 
20

0 
20

0 
20

0 
22

0 
 

76
.b

 
Th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 f
ra

ud
 

in
ve

st
ig

at
or

s 
pe

r 
1,

00
0 

ca
se

s 
0.

35
 

 
0.

52
 

0.
4 

0.
4 

0.
4 

0.
4 

 

76
.c

 
Th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 f
ra

ud
 

in
ve

st
ig

at
io

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 c
as

es
 

92
.6

3 
 

62
 

95
 

65
 

65
 

65
 

To
p 

Q
ua

rt
ile

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
20

04
/0

5 
 

76
.d

 
Th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 p
ro

se
cu

tio
ns

 
an

d 
sa

nc
tio

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 c
as

es
 

8.
01

 
 

17
 

8 
8 

8 
8 

To
p 

Q
ua

rt
ile

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
20

04
/0

5 
 

78
a 

Th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

tim
e 

fo
r 

pr
oc

es
si

ng
 n

ew
 b

en
ef

its
 c

la
im

s 
(d

ay
s)

 
35

.1
1 

 
30

.5
1 

30
 

30
 

29
 

28
 

 

78
b 

Th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

tim
e 

fo
r 

pr
oc

es
si

ng
 n

ot
ifi

ca
tio

n 
of

 
ch

an
ge

 o
f 

ci
rc

um
st

an
ce

 (
da

ys
) 

 
8.

8 
 

17
.3

1 
9 

16
 

15
 

14
 

 

79
a 

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
ca

se
s 

fo
r 

w
hi

ch
 t

he
 c

al
cu

la
tio

n 
of

 t
he

 
am

ou
nt

 o
f 

be
ne

fit
 d

ue
 w

as
 

99
%

 
 

98
.2

%
 

98
.4

%
 

98
.4

%
 

98
.4

%
 

98
.4

%
 

To
p 

Q
ua

rti
le

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
20

04
/0

5 

17



Ta
rg

et
s 

  
 

B
es

t V
al

ue
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

In
di

ca
to

r 
 

A
ct

u
al

 
20

04
/5

 
Tr

en
d 

 
 0

4/
05

 
V 

05
/0

6 

A
ct

ua
l 

20
05

/0
6 

05
/0

6 
06

/0
7 

07
/0

8
08

/0
9

C
om

m
en

ts
 

co
rr

ec
t 

on
 t

he
 b

as
is

 o
f 

th
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
de

te
rm

in
at

io
n 

(s
am

pl
e 

of
 c

as
es

 
ch

ec
ke

d 
po

st
-d

et
er

m
in

at
io

n)
. 

79
bi

 
Th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f 

H
ou

si
ng

 B
en

ef
it 

ov
er

pa
ym

en
ts

 r
ec

ov
er

ed
 a

s 
a 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
al

l o
ve

rp
ay

m
en

ts
 

41
.4

7
%

 
57

.2
6%

38
%

 
55

%
 

53
%

 
51

%
 

 

79
bi

i 

H
ou

si
ng

 B
en

ef
it 

ov
er

pa
ym

en
ts

 
re

co
ve

re
d 

as
 a

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 

th
e 

to
ta

l a
m

ou
nt

 o
f 

ov
er

pa
ym

en
t 

de
bt

 o
ut

st
an

di
ng

 
at

 t
he

 s
ta

rt
 o

f 
th

e 
ye

ar
, p

lu
s 

am
ou

nt
 o

f 
ov

er
pa

ym
en

ts
 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

. 

 
 

27
.3

7%
 

25
%

 
23

%
 

20
%

 
N

ew
 f

or
 2

00
5/

06
 

79
bi

ii 

H
ou

si
ng

 B
en

ef
it 

ov
er

pa
ym

en
ts

 
w

rit
te

n 
of

f 
as

 a
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 
th

e 
to

ta
l a

m
ou

nt
 o

f 
ov

er
pa

ym
en

t 
de

bt
 o

ut
st

an
di

ng
 

at
 t

he
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 

th
e 

ye
ar

, p
lu

s 
am

ou
nt

 o
f 

ov
er

pa
ym

en
ts

 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
ye

ar
 

 
 

6.
31

%
 

 
6%

 
7%

 
8%

 
N

ew
 f

or
 2

00
5/

06
 

20
2 

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 p

eo
pl

e 
sl

ee
pi

ng
 

ro
ug

h 
on

 a
 s

in
gl

e 
ni

gh
t 

w
ith

in
 

th
e 

ar
ea

 o
f 

th
e 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
0

-1
0 

 
0

-1
0 

 
0-

10
 

0-
10

 
0-

10
 

 

18



Ta
rg

et
s 

  
 

B
es

t V
al

ue
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

In
di

ca
to

r 
 

A
ct

u
al

 
20

04
/5

 
Tr

en
d 

 
 0

4/
05

 
V 

05
/0

6 

A
ct

ua
l 

20
05

/0
6 

05
/0

6 
06

/0
7 

07
/0

8
08

/0
9

C
om

m
en

ts
 

20
3 

%
 c

ha
ng

e 
in

 a
ve

ra
ge

 n
um

be
r 

of
 f

am
ili

es
 in

 t
em

p 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
co

m
pa

re
d 

pr
ev

io
us

 y
ea

r 

41
.0

7
%

 
19

.4
1%

 
10

%
 

15
%

 
15

%
 

Bo
tt

om
 Q

ua
rt

ile
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

20
04

/0
5 

21
3 

N
um

be
r 

of
 h

ou
se

ho
ld

s 
w

ho
 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 t

he
m

se
lv

es
 a

s 
ho

m
el

es
s,

 w
ho

 a
pp

ro
ac

he
d 

th
e 

lo
ca

l h
ou

si
ng

 a
ut

ho
rit

y'
s 

ho
us

in
g 

ad
vi

ce
 s

er
vi

ce
(s

),
 a

nd
 

fo
r 

w
ho

m
 h

ou
si

ng
 a

dv
ic

e 
ca

se
w

or
k 

in
te

rv
en

tio
n 

re
so

lv
ed

 
th

ei
r 

si
tu

at
io

n 

 

 
95

 
ca

se
s 

 
10

5 
 

11
5 

12
5 

N
ew

 f
or

 2
00

5/
06

 

21
4 

Pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

ac
ce

pt
ed

 a
s 

st
at

ut
or

ily
 

ho
m

el
es

s 
w

ho
 w

er
e 

ac
ce

pt
ed

 
as

 s
ta

tu
to

ril
y 

ho
m

el
es

s 
by

 t
he

 
sa

m
e 

Au
th

or
ity

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 la

st
 

tw
o 

ye
ar

s.
 

 

 
4%

 
 

3%
 

3%
 

2%
 

N
ew

 f
or

 2
00

5/
06

 

 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 M

ea
su

re
s 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

10
6 

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
ne

w
 h

om
es

 
bu

ilt
 o

n 
pr

ev
io

us
ly

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 

la
nd

 
36

.2
%

 
 

36
.2

%
 

43
%

 
43

%
 

43
%

 
43

%
 

Bo
tt

om
 Q

ua
rt

ile
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

20
04

/0
5 

10
9a

 
M

aj
or

 a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 
in

 1
3 

w
ee

ks
 

41
.1

8
%

 
58

.3
%

 
60

%
 

60
%

 
60

%
 

60
%

 
Bo

tt
om

 Q
ua

rt
ile

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
20

04
/0

5 

19



Ta
rg

et
s 

  
 

B
es

t V
al

ue
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

In
di

ca
to

r 
 

A
ct

u
al

 
20

04
/5

 
Tr

en
d 

 
 0

4/
05

 
V 

05
/0

6 

A
ct

ua
l 

20
05

/0
6 

05
/0

6 
06

/0
7 

07
/0

8
08

/0
9

C
om

m
en

ts
 

10
9b

 
M

in
or

 a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 
in

 8
 w

ee
ks

 
51

.2
7

%
 

71
.8

4%
65

%
 

65
%

 
65

%
 

65
%

 
Bo

tt
om

 Q
ua

rt
ile

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
20

04
/0

5 

10
9c

 
O

th
er

 a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 
(p

re
do

m
in

an
tly

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
er

) 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 in
 8

 w
ee

ks
 

79
.8

3
%

 
91

.6
1%

80
%

 
80

%
 

80
%

 
80

%
 

Bo
tt

om
 Q

ua
rt

ile
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

20
04

/0
5 

17
9 

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
st

an
da

rd
 

se
ar

ch
es

 c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t 

in
 1

0 
w

or
ki

ng
 d

ay
s 

 
96

.5
9

%
 

98
.4

%
 

10
0%

 
 

 
 

D
el

et
ed

 2
00

6/
07

 
Bo

tt
om

 Q
ua

rt
ile

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
20

04
/0

5 

20
0a

 

D
id

 t
he

 lo
ca

l p
la

nn
in

g 
au

th
or

ity
 

su
bm

it 
th

e 
Lo

ca
l D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Sc
he

m
e 

(L
D

S)
 b

y 
28

th
 M

ar
ch

 
20

05
 a

nd
 t

he
re

af
te

r 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

a 
3-

ye
ar

 r
ol

lin
g 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e?

 

Y
es

 
 

Y
es

 
N

o 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
 

20
0b

 

H
as

 t
he

 lo
ca

l p
la

nn
in

g 
au

th
or

ity
 

m
et

 t
he

 m
ile

st
on

es
 w

hi
ch

 t
he

 
cu

rr
en

t 
Lo

ca
l D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Sc
he

m
e 

(L
D

S)
 s

et
s 

ou
t?

 

 
 

Ye
s 

Ye
s 

Ye
s 

Ye
s 

Ye
s 

 

20
0c

 

D
id

 t
he

 L
oc

al
 P

la
nn

in
g 

Au
th

or
ity

 p
ub

lis
h 

an
 a

nn
ua

l 
re

po
rt

 b
y 

31
st

 D
ec

em
be

r 
ea

ch
 

ye
ar

? 

 
 

Y
es

 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
 

20
4 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
ap

pe
al

s 
al

lo
w

ed
 

ag
ai

ns
t 

th
e 

co
un

ci
ls

 d
ec

is
io

n 
to

 
re

fu
se

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 

27
.5

9
%

 
29

.4
9%

40
%

 
40

%
 

40
%

 
40

%
 

 

20



Ta
rg

et
s 

  
 

B
es

t V
al

ue
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

In
di

ca
to

r 
 

A
ct

u
al

 
20

04
/5

 
Tr

en
d 

 
 0

4/
05

 
V 

05
/0

6 

A
ct

ua
l 

20
05

/0
6 

05
/0

6 
06

/0
7 

07
/0

8
08

/0
9

C
om

m
en

ts
 

20
5 

Q
ua

lit
y 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 c

he
ck

lis
t 

fo
r 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
88

.8
9

%
 

88
.8

9%
90

%
 

90
%

 
90

%
 

90
%

 
To

p 
Q

ua
rt

ile
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

20
04

/0
5 

21
9a

 
To

ta
l n

um
be

r 
of

 c
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
ar

ea
s 

in
 t

he
 lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

ar
ea

. 
 

 
63

 
 

63
 

63
 

63
 

N
ew

 f
or

 2
00

5/
06

 

21
9b

 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
ar

ea
s 

in
 t

he
 lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

ar
ea

 
w

ith
 a

n 
up

-t
o-

da
te

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
 

ap
pr

ai
sa

l 

 
 

15
.9

7%
 

23
%

 
31

%
 

39
%

 
N

ew
 f

or
 2

00
5/

06
 

21
9c

 
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f 

co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

ar
ea

s 
w

ith
 p

ub
lis

he
d 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

pr
op

os
al

s 
 

 
1.

59
%

 
 

9%
 

24
%

 
39

%
 

N
ew

 f
or

 2
00

5/
06

 

  * 
Pr

ov
is

io
na

l d
at

a 

21



22

This page is intentionally left blank



G
ro

w
in

g 
Su

cc
es

s 
 

Th
e 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y 
be

n
ef

it
s 

w
e 

de
liv

er
: 

 O
u

tc
om

e 
La

g 
or

 e
n

d 
of

 y
ea

r 
 

M
ea

su
re

 
A

ct
u

al
 

20
04

/
05

 

Ta
rg

et
 

fo
r 

20
05

/0
6 

A
ct

u
al

 
20

05
/0

6 
Ta

rg
et

  
20

06
/0

7
C

om
m

en
ts

 

G
oo

d 
re

pu
ta

tio
n 

Co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

(C
PA

) 
ra

tin
g 

Ex
ce

lle
n

t 
Ex

ce
lle

nt
 

Ex
ce

lle
nt

 
Ex

ce
lle

nt
 

 

G
oo

d 
va

lu
e 

fo
r 

m
on

ey
 

%
 s

at
is

fie
d 

w
ith

 le
ve

l o
f 

Co
un

ci
l T

ax
 f
or

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
pr

ov
id

ed
 

36
%

 
60

%
 

 
54

%
 

60
%

 

 

G
oo

d 
qu

al
ity

 o
f 

lif
e 

 
%

 s
at

is
fie

d 
w

ith
 

H
un

tin
gd

on
sh

ire
 a

s 
a 

go
od

 
pl

ac
e 

to
 li

ve
 

87
%

 
88

%
 

 
91

%
 

90
%

 
  

Sa
fe

 a
n

d 
A

ct
iv

e 
C

om
m

u
n

it
ie

s 
%

 w
ho

 f
ee

l s
af

e 
 

82
%

 
85

%
 

 
90

%
 

90
%

 
 

H
ea

lt
h

y 
P

op
u

la
ti

on
 

 

Av
er

ag
e 

lif
e 

ex
pe

ct
an

cy
  

 
M

al
es

fe
m

al
e

 
77

.5
 

yr
s 

82
.1

 
yr

s 

77
.5

 y
rs

 
m

al
es

 
82

.1
 y

rs
 

fe
m

al
es

 

 
77

.5
 y

rs
 

m
al

es
 

82
.1

 y
rs

 
fe

m
al

es
 

 

C
le

an
, G

re
en

 a
n

d 
A

tt
ra

ct
iv

e 
En

vi
ro

n
m

en
t 

 

%
 s

at
is

fie
d 

th
at

 
H

un
tin

gd
on

sh
ire

 is
 a

 
cl

ea
n,

 g
re

en
 a

nd
 a

tt
ra

ct
iv

e 
pl

ac
e 

72
%

 
75

%
 

 
83

%
 

84
%

 

 

H
ou

si
n

g 
th

at
 

m
ee

ts
 L

oc
al

 L
ee

ds
 

%
 o

f 
ho

us
in

g 
ne

ed
s 

ta
rg

et
s 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 
83

%
 

80
%

 
 

80
%

 
 

St
ro

n
g 

&
 D

iv
er

se
 

Ec
on

om
y 

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 lo

ca
l j

ob
s 

74
,0

00
 

75
,0

00
 

 
73

,0
00

 
73

,0
00

 
 

A
cc

es
si

bl
e 

Se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 
Tr

an
sp

or
t 

C
h

oi
ce

s 

%
 w

ho
 f

ee
l t

he
y 

ha
ve

 
go

od
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
 

56
%

 
60

%
 

 
58

%
 

65
%

 
 

A
P

P
EN

D
IX

 B
A

23



  Th
e 

pr
oc

es
s 

at
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e 
m

u
st

 e
xc

el
 :

 
 O

u
tc

om
e 

La
g 

or
 e

n
d 

of
 y

ea
r 

 
M

ea
su

re
 

A
ct

u
al

 
20

04
/0

5
Ta

rg
et

 
fo

r 
20

05
/0

6 

A
ct

u
al

 
20

05
/0

6 
Ta

rg
et

  
20

06
/0

7
C

om
m

en
ts

 

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 
le

ad
er

sh
ip

 
%

 w
ho

 b
el

ie
ve

 w
e 

ha
ve

 
cl

ea
r 

di
re

ct
io

n 
an

d 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

 

53
%

 
70

%
 

 

 
54

%
 

65
%

 

 

H
ig

h 
qu

al
ity

 s
er

vi
ce

 
de

liv
er

y 
%

 o
f 

cu
st

om
er

s 
ra

tin
g 

se
rv

ic
e 

qu
al

ity
 a

s 
go

od
 o

r 
be

tt
er

  
67

%
 

65
%

 
 

71
%

 
72

%
 

 

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

ps
 

%
 o

f 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
ta

rg
et

s 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 

 
80

%
 

 

80
%

 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
of

 
fr

am
ew

or
k 

co
m

pl
et

e 
by

 2
nd

 q
ua

rt
er

 
20

06
/0

7.
  
D

at
a 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
3rd

 Q
rt

 
20

06
/0

7 
R
ev

en
ue

 e
xp

en
di

tu
re

 a
s 

a 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f 
bu

dg
et

 
86

%
 

95
%

 
95

%
 

95
%

 
 

Ca
pi

ta
l e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 a

s 
a 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
bu

dg
et

 
77

%
 

95
%

 +
/-

 
5%

 
44

%
 

95
%

 +
/-

 
5%

,  
 

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 

%
 o

f 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

ou
tc

om
es

 in
 

re
so

ur
ce

 s
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 
 

85
%

 

 

10
0%

 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
of

 
fr

am
ew

or
k 

un
de

rw
ay

. 
D

at
a 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ap
pr

ai
sa

ls
 

(2
00

7)
 

M
an

ag
in

g 
Ex

pe
ct

at
io

ns
 

%
 o

f 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

 a
n 

ac
cu

ra
te

 u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 o

f 
ou

r 
se

rv
ic

e 
st

an
da

rd
s 

 
73

%
 

80
%

 
 

68
%

 
80

%
 

    
   

24



 W
h

at
 d

o 
ou

r 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

th
in

k 
an

d 
do

 t
h

ey
 h

av
e 

th
e 

ri
gh

t 
sk

ill
s:

 
 O

u
tc

om
e 

La
g 

M
ea

su
re

 
A

ct
u

al
 

20
04

/0
5

Ta
rg

et
 

20
05

/0
6 

A
ct

u
al

 
20

05
/0

6 
Ta

rg
et

  
20

06
/0

7
C

om
m

en
ts

 

%
 o

f 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

w
ith

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 s
ki

lls
 

 

80
%

 

 

80
%

 

D
at

a 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

1st
 

qu
ar

te
r 

20
06

/0
7.

 . 
m

ea
su

re
d 

at
 s

ix
 

m
on

th
ly

 a
nd

 a
nn

ua
l 

ap
pr

ai
sa

ls
. 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s 
an

d 
M

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 t

he
 

rig
ht

 s
ki

lls
  

%
 o

f 
M

em
be

rs
 w

ho
 h

av
e 

at
te

nd
ed

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 
co

ur
se

s 
61

.3
%

 
80

%
 

49
%

 
80

%
 

Ch
an

ge
d 

m
ea

su
re

 
(S

ur
ve

y 
in

 J
un

e 
06

) 

In
no

va
tio

n 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
 

%
 o

f 
st

af
f 

w
ho

 f
ee

l w
e 

ha
ve

 a
 c

ul
tu

re
 o

f 
in

no
va

tio
n 

 

34
.8

%
 

60
%

 

 

60
%

 

D
at

a 
fr

om
 s

ta
ff

 
su

rv
ey

 –
 n

ex
t 

su
rv

ey
 

du
e 

20
07

 

Ke
y 

be
ha

vi
ou

rs
 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

d 
an

d 
va

lu
ed

  

%
 o

f 
st

af
f 

w
ho

 f
ee

l t
ha

t 
ke

y 
be

ha
vi

ou
rs

 a
re

 v
al

ue
d 

 

70
%

 

 

70
%

 

O
rg

an
is

at
io

na
l 

va
lu

es
 a

do
pt

ed
. 

D
at

a 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ap

pr
ai

sa
ls

 
(2

00
6)

. 
Sh

ar
e 

&
 U

se
 

Kn
ow

le
dg

e 
%

 o
f 

st
af

f 
w

ho
 f

ee
l w

e 
ar

e 
a 

le
ar

ni
ng

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

n 
 

70
%

 
80

%
 

 
80

%
 

D
at

a 
fr

om
 s

ta
ff

 
su

rv
ey

 –
 n

ex
t 

su
rv

ey
 

du
e 

20
07

 

25



          
 
          
CPA IMPROVEMENT PLAN – PROGRESS REPORT UP TO 31st 

March 2006 
Subject Proposed Action  
Access and 
Accommodation 
 

• Complete accommodation review 
• Complete DDA compliance survey and works 
• Deliver Customer First programme 

 

Benefits 
 

• Processes for developing and changing local 
procedures. 

• Management checks of benefit assessments. 
• Improvements in processing time. 
• Revising documentation. 
• Vetting arrangements for new staff 
• Fraud investigation and 
• recovery of over-payments 

 

Capacity • Review spending and resource allocation plans to 
ensure delivery of priorities.  

• Delivery of People Strategy 

 

Children and Young People • Adopt “Here by Right” standard. 
• Develop corporate protection policies 

 

Corporate Governance 
 

• Achievement of Corporate Governance framework.  

Diversity and user focus • Revise equality and inclusion strategy. 
• Complete “Mapping Diversity” project. 
• Use research and consultation data to plan and 

improve services. 
• Complete race assessments and implementation of 

actions. 
• Promote compliance with Disability Discrimination Act. 

 

Financial Management 
 

• Completion of programmed improvements.  

Housing • Implementation of BVR – Balancing Housing Need – 
which incorporates improvements identified during the 
CPA 

• BME survey 
• Traveller Needs Survey 
• Conduct stock condition survey 

 

Learning & Knowledge • Adopt systematic approaches to learning and sharing 
knowledge. 

• Mapping Diversity Project, Traveller Needs Survey, 
Housing Survey. “Here by Right” programme. 

 

Overview & Scrutiny 
 

• Implement overview and scrutiny development plan. 
• Integrate corporate performance management 

framework with scrutiny process 

 

Partnership Working 
 

• Develop Partnership framework 
• Monitoring and evaluation of partnership success 
• Implement “Next Steps” and performance management 

system for Huntingdonshire Strategic Partnership. 
• Contribute to the development and achievement of 

Local Public Service Agreements 

 

Performance Management • Complete project plan to implement comprehensive  

APPENDIX C

26



performance management framework, including 
publication of service standards 

Priorities and Vision 
 

• Facilitate strategic choices.   
• Initiate review programme, including external challenge, 

based on priorities and informed by CPMF. 
• Prepare and implement communications plans. 

 

Procurement 
 

• Review procurement strategy in relation to Gershon 
report, national procurement strategy and principles of 
sustainability 

 

Risk Management 
 

• Complete risk registers 
• Link to new service planning framework. 
• Complete business continuity plans 

 

 

27



28

This page is intentionally left blank



. 
 

EMPLOYEE LIAISON ADVISORY GROUP   7TH JUNE 2006 
EMPLOYMENT PANEL        7TH JUNE 2006                                               
CABINET       8th JUNE 2006 
 

SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN, YOUNG PEOPLE AND ADULTS 
(Joint Report by the Heads of Policy and HR and Payroll Services) 

 
 
1.  INTRODUCTION 

 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to consider and adopt a policy on safeguarding, in 

accordance with a statutory duty under the Children’s Act 2004. 
 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The Council has for many years had a full policy in its leisure service areas, but 

as recommended in the Comprehensive Performance Assessment, this needs 
to be extended to cover the whole of the Council’s operations.  

 
3, SAFEGUARDING POLICY 
 
3.1 The attached policy document has been developed by an officer working group 

comprising representatives from Leisure Development, Leisure Centres, Policy 
and Personnel, using recommended best practice and liaison with other 
Councils in Cambridgeshire. A draft action plan is also attached for information 
purposes. 

 
4. RECOMMENDATION 
 
4.1 The Employment Panel is recommended to approve the policy document for 

the purposes of its role as the employer, and Cabinet is recommended to 
approve the policy document in respect of its application to Members. 

   
 

 
Contact Officers:  
Gill Hanby, Policy Officer � (01480) 388462 
Louise Clewes, Policy Officer � (01480) 388032 
Phil Duerden, Head of HR and Payroll Services � (01480) 388043 
 
Background Papers: Children’s Act 2004     
   
 

Agenda Item 4

29



30

This page is intentionally left blank



May 2006 1

Huntingdonshire District Council  
Safeguarding Children, Young People and 
Vulnerable Adults 
 
Introduction 
Everyone has a responsibility to safeguard children, young people and vulnerable adults 
 
Huntingdonshire District Council (HDC) is committed to delivering services that 
safeguard those who engage with them  
 
This policy outlines good practice that will promote the safety of those using our services 
and protect employees and councillors from false allegations 
 
Definitions: 
Children and Young People: Anyone under the age of 18 years 
 
Vulnerable Adult:   Anyone over 18 who is 

• Or may be in need of community care 
services 

• Unable to care for themselves 
• Unable to protect themselves against 

significant harm or exploitation  
 

Employees and Councillors: Anyone working for, or on behalf of, HDC 
whether paid or voluntary 

 
Substantial Access:  

• Where an individual is regularly caring for, 
training or supervising a child, young person 
or vulnerable adult 

• Where an individual has sole charge of 
children, young people or vulnerable adults 

 
Background 
The Children Act 2004 puts a duty on key statutory agencies to safeguard and promote 
the welfare of children.  Section 11 specifically requires district councils to be part of the 
Local Safeguarding Board (LSGB) and the LSGB must  
 

‘ensure services safeguard and promote the welfare of children and young people 
and ensure anyone else providing services also provides safe practice’ 

 
In March 2000 the Government issued a document called ‘No Secrets’ aimed at 
developing policies and procedures to protect vulnerable adults from abuse. 
 
In practical terms this means that we have a responsibility to provide a safe environment 
for children, young people and vulnerable adults, in which their welfare is of paramount 
importance. 
 
 

31



May 2006 2

Aim 
To implement procedures to safeguard children, young people and vulnerable adults and 
protect them from abuse  
 
We will achieve this by  

• Respecting and promoting the rights, wishes and feelings of children, young 
people and vulnerable adults 

• Promoting good practice that encourages a safe environment; protects all parties 
and avoids mistaken allegations of abuse 

• Providing all employees and councillors with information, instruction and training 
that will ensure that they are properly equipped to  

o Identify where there may be a problem 
o Know how to obtain speedy professional advice 
o Refer concerns to relevant specialists 
o Protect themselves from false accusations of abuse 

• Ensuring that all suspicions or allegations involving employees and councillors 
are dealt with effectively and efficiently and that appropriate disciplinary and 
appeals procedures are implemented 

• Ensure employees and councillors who work with children, young people and 
vulnerable adults are subject to the appropriate level of Criminal Records Bureau 
(CRB) check before beginning any unsupervised work with children, young 
people or vulnerable adults and that this check is repeated every 3 years 

• Reviewing this policy every 3 years or whenever there is a major change in the 
organisation or in relevant legislation 

 
Principles 
Key principles underpinning this policy are: 

• The welfare of the individual is paramount 
• Everyone has the right to protection from abuse 
• Employees and councillors should work in an open and transparent way  
• Employees and councillors should avoid any conduct which would lead any 

reasonable person to question their motives or intentions 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

32



May 2006 3

Who does the policy apply to?  
The policy applies to all HDC employees and councillors whether paid or voluntary. 
 
Specific Responsibilities  
Lead Child Protection Officer 

• Will have overall responsibility for safeguarding children, young people and 
vulnerable adults for Huntingdonshire District Council and be HDC's 
representative on the Local Safeguarding Board 

• Will be a first point of contact for the council on issues relating to safeguarding 
children, young people or vulnerable adults for members of the public and other 
external contacts 

• Will ensure all relevant information is communicated to Designated Child 
Protection Officers  

• Will initiate a review of the Safeguarding Children, Young People and Vulnerable 
Adults policy every 3 years 

 
Personnel  

• Will, through recruitment and selection processes, ensure CRB checks and 
references that refer to the candidates’ suitability to have substantial access to 
children, young people or vulnerable adults are taken up for all appropriate posts.  

• Will include appropriate training in the Corporate Training Programme and ensure 
that safeguarding training is part of the induction programme for all new 
employees with substantial access to children, young people or vulnerable adults 

• Will maintain a record of all employees that have completed a CRB check and are 
considered suitable for work involving substantial access to children, young 
people or vulnerable adults  

• Will ensure that CRB checks and references are kept secure and confidential  
 
Managers  

• Are responsible for making sure that all their staff are aware of, understand and 
act in accordance with this policy and related guidance. 

• Must make sure that any contractors, agents or other representatives whom they 
engage to undertake duties on their behalf, which involves contact with children, 
young people or vulnerable adults, understand and comply with the policy. 

 
Managers of employees with variable hours contracts 

• Will, through recruitment and selection processes, ensure CRB checks are taken 
up for all appropriate posts.  

• Will ensure that safeguarding training is part of the induction programme for all 
new employees with substantial access to children, young people or vulnerable 
adults. 

 
Designated Child Protection Officers 

• Will provide a point of contact for employees and councillors who want to test 
concerns about safeguarding children, young people and vulnerable adults or 
take forward a disclosure 

• Will provide a point of contact with the Social Services Duty Officer  
• Will maintain a list of local contacts 

 
All Employees and Councillors  

• Have a responsibility to protect children, young people and vulnerable adults, but 
are not responsible for deciding whether abuse is taking place 

• Should be aware of this policy  

33



May 2006 4

• Should attend appropriate safeguarding children, young people and vulnerable 
adults training if their role involves substantial access to children, young people or 
vulnerable adults  

• Should not begin any unsupervised activity involving substantial access to 
children, young people or vulnerable adults prior to receiving a satisfactory CRB 
check 

• Should be aware of appropriate and inappropriate behaviour for employees and 
councillors in charge of children, young people and vulnerable adults 

• Should know who their Designated Child Protection Officer is  
• Have a responsibility to inform their manager (or the Monitoring Officer for 

Councillors) of any allegation of abuse 
 

Recruitment, Employment and Deployment Procedures 
All reasonable steps will be taken to ensure unsuitable people are prevented from 
working with children young people and vulnerable adults.  
 
Recruiting for Posts 
Line managers will review the job description before recruiting to identify whether there 
will be substantial access to children, young people or vulnerable adults 
 
Where there is substantial access to children, young people or vulnerable adults, 
applicants will be sent a summary of the Safeguarding Children, Young People and 
Vulnerable Adults Policy as part of the application pack and the following additional 
information will be sought as part of the application process 

(a) A self disclosure questionnaire to establish whether they have ever had action  
     taken against them in relation to child abuse, sexual offences or violence 
(b) The applicant’s consent to a CRB check being undertaken 
(c) At least two references that comment on the applicant’s previous experience of,  
     and suitability for working with children, young people and vulnerable adults (see   
     Appendix 1) 

 
Working with Contractors and Partner Organisations 
Any contractor or sub-contractor, engaged by the Council in areas where workers are 
likely to come into contact with children, young people or vulnerable adults should have 
their own Safeguarding Children, Young People and Vulnerable Adults Policy or failing 
this must comply with the terms of this policy. This includes responsibility for ensuring 
that workers with the potential to come into contact with children, young people or 
vulnerable adults are subject to the necessary CRB checks.  
 
This applies to all contracts even those not requiring a formal tender 
 
Hiring of HDC Facilities  
Where HDC facilities are hired to external groups for use with children, young people or 
vulnerable adults when parents/carers are not present, the hirer will need to  

• Have membership of a National Governing Body (NGB) or similarly recognised 
body  

• Have public liability insurance (£10 million minimum)  
• Have a suitable safeguarding children, young people and vulnerable adults policy 

or agree to work to HDC’s policy  
• Have a register detailing medical information and special needs 
• Ensure lead staff have valid criminal records bureau checks 
• Comply with the NGB Coach/Pupil Ratios or in absence of this with Social 

Services Coach/Pupil Ratios 
• Do risk assessments for individual activities  

34



May 2006 5

Using Volunteers 
Volunteers can lead activities if they have a valid CRB check and are appropriately 
qualified.  An HDC employee will provide indirect supervision at all times and must be the 
one to allocate tasks and make relevant decisions.  
 
The Manager of the department recruiting a volunteer is responsible for ensuring that the 
self-disclosure form is completed (See Appendix 2) and passed to Personnel. 
 
Portability of Criminal Records Bureau Checks 
Consideration to the portability of CRB checks will be given where no other prohibitive 
evidence is highlighted as part of the interview process.  They will be included in the 3-
year rolling programme for CRB renewal 
 
Training 
Appropriate training will be provided to all HDC employees and councillors who could 
potentially come into contact with children, young people or vulnerable adults. The level 
of training required will be identified in accordance with the responsibilities of the post. 
 
For new employees and councillors, training will be provided as soon as possible after 
commencement, in all cases within 6 months.  Refresher training will be provided every 
three years.  
 
Coaches and other casual employees (e.g. summer and holiday staff) working in sport, 
who can provide evidence that they have attended a governing body approved training 
course in safeguarding children, young people and vulnerable adults may be exempt 
from this training 
 
Monitoring and Appraisal 
Safeguarding children, young people and vulnerable adults will be reviewed in relation to 
an individual’s work annually via appraisal  
 
This policy will be reviewed every 3 years.  Review will be initiated by the Lead Child 
Protection Officer 
 
Good Practice when Working with Children, Young People and Vulnerable Adults 
Guidance on setting the right context for working with children, young people and 
vulnerable adults is included at Appendix 3. 
 
In addition HDC have a number of guidance documents that should be used to inform 
practice when working with children, young people and vulnerable adults. 
 
Guidance Document  When it could be used  
Activity Permission Form 
See Appendix 4 

To be completed by parents/carers of young 
people under 16,  or by the young person if 
they are aged 16-18 years when engaging in 
activities with HDC  

Medication Policy Form 
See Appendix 5 

To be completed by parents/carers of young 
people under 16 if a young person needs 
medication as identified on the Activity 
Permission Form  

Use of Photographic Equipment Guidance in 
District Council Leisure Centres 
 

When working with children, young people or 
vulnerable adults in District Council Leisure 
Centres 

Involving Young People in Press and Publicity  Where children and young people may be 
involved in an event or project where the press 
are present or when photographs for publicity 
or evaluation purposes may be taken  

35



May 2006 6

What Constitutes Abuse? 
Abuse occurs when a person or group of people, harm a child or young person under 18 
or a vulnerable adult.    
 
There are four categories of abuse commonly referred to: 
Neglect: where a carer fails to meet an individual’s basic physical needs – 

eg for food, warmth and clothing or emotional needs for attention 
and affection  

Physical Abuse: where a child, young person or vulnerable adult is hit, shaken or 
injured in some way or where a carer fails to prevent such activities 
from happening 

Sexual Abuse: where children, young people or vulnerable adults are used to 
meet another person’s sexual needs.  This includes any form of 
sexual behaviour with a child – by an adult or another child; the 
use of explicit language, inappropriate touching, intimate 
relationships and exposure to pornographic material 

Emotional Abuse: where a child, young person or vulnerable adult is subjected to 
frequent threatening, taunting or sarcastic behaviour; the persistent 
withholding of affection or extreme over protection.  Also includes 
racist or sexist behaviour and initiation ceremonies 

 
Bullying by adults or other young people is often cited as another form of abuse 
 
Responding to Suspicions and Allegations of Abuse 
It is not the responsibility of any employee or councillor to decide whether or not abuse is 
taking place.  However, all employees and councillors have a responsibility to protect 
children, young people and vulnerable adults. 
 
If an individual discloses to you it is important that you react appropriately. 

• Be calm and receptive 
• Do not apportion blame or pass judgement 
• Do not approach an alleged abuser 
• Do not guarantee confidentiality  
• Listen but do not probe, speculate or ask for additional information 
• Make a full record of what has been said, heard or seen as soon as is reasonably 

possible and using the individual’s own words 
• Complete an incident referral form (Appendix 6) and give it to the Designated 

Child Protection Officer 
 
If a person is at risk of significant harm call the police directly. 

• Record the name and number of the police officer who deals with your enquiry 
and record the time and date of the call  

• Inform your Designated Child Protection Officer as soon as possible 
 
Complete the Incident Referral form (Appendix 6) and hand to your Designated Child 
Protection Officer  

• DCPO will decide whether further action is needed 
• DCPO will advise the referrer of the action taken 

 
 
 
 
 
 

36



May 2006 7

What if I want to report poor practice or have concerns involving an employee or 
councillor? 
If someone is at risk of significant harm, eg in physical danger contact the police directly, 
as above 
 
Complete the incident referral form (Appendix 6) and give it to your line manager.  They 
will pass it to the relevant line manager for action or to the Monitoring Officer if your 
concern is about a councillor 
 
If the person suspected of poor practice is the line manager, consult the Lead CPO.  
 
 
What if a member of my staff is accused of poor practice?’ 
Withdraw them from duty at the earliest opportunity  
 
With their co-operation make a written record of the details of the event 
 
Carry out an investigation.   
If found to be poor practice rather than abuse then the Line Manager and Personnel will 
consider  

• Appropriate training and supervision 
• Reviewing general practice in relation to safeguarding children, young 

people and vulnerable adults 
• Implementing standard disciplinary procedures  

 
What if a member of my staff is accused of abuse?’ 
Withdraw them from duty at the earliest opportunity  
 
With their co-operation make a written record of the details of the event 
 
Carry out an investigation.  If abuse cannot be ruled out then the Police should be 
contacted  
 
If abuse is confirmed  

• Implement standard disciplinary procedures  
• Review general practice in relation to safeguarding children, young people and 

vulnerable adults 
 
What if I am accused of poor practice or child abuse?  
Contact your Line Manager as soon as possible and write a detailed account of what 
happened 
 
They will investigate the incident and take appropriate action  
 
Confidentiality  
Every effort will be made to ensure that confidentiality is maintained for all concerned. 
Information will be handled and disseminated on a need to know basis only.  

 
Information will be stored in a secure place with the Lead CPO (hard copy or 
electronically).  Access will only be allowed via the LCPO. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

37



May 2006 8

Safeguarding Children, Young People and Vulnerable Adults 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Do you suspect abuse 
is taking place? 

Has abuse been disclosed 
by an individual? 

Respond appropriately to the 
individual * 

Is the person at risk of 
significant harm? 

   YES   NO 

Contact Police * Complete an 
incident 

recording form*

Discuss with DCPO* 

DCPO refer to SSD DCPO to file with 
LCPO 

Action 
Needed 

Action not needed 

DCPO to feedback 
to referrer* 

* Additional 
guidance in policy 

38



May 2006 9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Are you reporting poor 
practice? 

What if I am accused of poor 
practice? 

Is someone in imminent 
danger? 

YES NO 

Contact police Complete 
incident form

Inform Line Manager 

What if a member of my staff is 
accused of poor practice or 

abuse? 

Withdraw them from duty  

Poor practice 

File report with LCPO 

With personnel 
identify appropriate 

training and 
supervision 

With lead CPO review 
general practice in 

relation to Protection 
of Children, Young 

People and 
Vulnerable Adults

Carry out investigation 

Implement standard disciplinary 
procedures

Abuse

39



May 2006 10

Appendix 1 

Reference Request 
 
 Name:        
 
 Date of Commencement of Employment: 
 
 Job Title: 
 
 
 Main duties including responsibilities for employees and councillors, etc:  
 
 
 
 
 
 Experience of working with children and young people or vulnerable adults: 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 Full or part time   
 (If part time, number of hours per week) 
 
 Salary (or wage rate):  
 
 Details of work responsibilities:  
 
 
 
 
 
 Achievements in last 12 months:  
 
 
 
 
 
 Assessment of performance:   
 (Identifying any particular strengths or weaknesses)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Sickness record:   
 (Number of days absent in last full year or, if employed for less than 1 year, during period of employment) 
 
 
 
 
 

40



May 2006 11

 
 Disciplinary record: 

Are there any disciplinary warnings recorded in respect of the applicant?        YES/NO 
 
 If YES, please state the reasons for the warning(s) and when it was (they were) given: 
  
 
 
  
 If the person has left your employment - was there any disciplinary action during  
 his/her period of employment with your organisation?                  YES/NO 
 
 If YES, please give details: 
  
 
 Are you aware of any convictions (other than spent convictions) recorded against 
 the applicant?                     YES/NO 
 
 If YES, please specify these: 
  
 
 
 Do you know any reason why we should not employ him/her?                       YES/NO 
 
 If YES, please specify: 
  
 
 
 
 Did you find him/her: Honest   YES/NO 
     Punctual  YES/NO 
     Reliable  YES/NO 
 
 If the applicant is no longer in your employment: 
 Date of leaving:  
 
 Reason for leaving:  
 
 Would you re-employ him/her?   YES/NO 
 

Do you have any further comments which you wish to offer about the applicant, 
bearing in mind the post for which he/she has applied, as described in the 
accompanying letter? 

 
 
 
 
 Signature...............................................................  Date: 
 
 Name......................................................................... 
 
 Position in Organisation: 
 
 Name, address and telephone number of company/organisation  
 

41



May 2006 12

Appendix 2 

 
 

Self Disclosure Form  
 

CONFIDENTIAL  
 
Have you ever been convicted of a criminal offence or been subject of a caution or 
Bound Over Order? 
 
   Yes    No 
 
If ‘yes’ please state the nature and date(s) of the offence(s)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Have you ever been subject to any disciplinary action or sanctions relating to the abuse 
of children, young people or vulnerable adults? 
 
   Yes    No  
 
If ‘yes’ please give details 
 
 
 
 
 
 
You are required to self-certify that you are not known to any social services department 
or police investigating body as being an actual or potential risk to children; have not been 
disqualified or prohibited from fostering children or had any child vested in you assumed 
by a local authority; or have not had a child ordered to be removed from your care. 
 
Signed:      Date: 
 
Name (please print)  
 
Any other name you have previously been known by 
 
Address: 
 
Date of Birth     Place of Birth  
 
You are advised that under the provisions of the Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 
(Exceptions) Order 1975 as amended by the Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 
(Amendment) 1986, you should declare all convictions (including spent convictions)  
 
As part of the checking procedures for anyone who may have access to children, young 
people or vulnerable adults while working for HDC, you are advised that we reserve the 
right to make reference to the local authority social services department and police 
records to verify the information given on this form. 
 

42



May 2006 13

Appendix 3 

Setting the Right Context for Safe Working   
 
 
Implement the safeguarding children, young people and vulnerable adults policy and 
procedures at all times  
 
Never leave children, young people or vulnerable adults unattended or with employees or 
councillors who have not been subject to a Criminal Records Bureau check  
 
Do not allow allegations to go unchallenged, unrecorded and unreported 
 
 
 
 
 
Good Preparation  
Plan activities to involve more than one person being present or at least in sight or hearing 
of others.  Alternatively, record, or inform others, of your whereabouts and intended action  
 
Where possible, have male and female leaders when working with a mixed group 
 
Ensure registers are complete and attendees are marked in and signed out (under 8’s must 
be collected by a parent/carer)  
 
Ensure photos or videos are not taken without written permission from parents/carers.  See 
permission slip at Appendix 4 
 
Ensure you have access to a first aid kit and telephone and know fire procedures  
 
Ensure that toilet trips and first aid are carried out in pairs/groups or in the latter case 
where you can be seen  
 
Ensure appropriate clothing is worn by yourself and those participating at all times 
 
When working outside, ensure activities, breaks and clothing are suitable for the weather 
conditions and that shelter is available where possible 
 
 
 
 
 
Setting the Right Environment  
Set an example you wish others to follow 
 
Treat everyone with respect  
 
Ensure everyone has an equal opportunity to participate 
 
Do not show favouritism  
 
Do not do things of a personal nature that individuals can do for themselves 
 
Do not permit abusive activities eg bullying 
 
Deal firmly and fairly with attention seeking behaviour  
 
Do not allow inappropriate language or use it yourself 
 
Never make sexually suggestive comments 
 
Remember someone else might misinterpret your actions even if well intentioned 
 

43



May 2006 14

 
Avoiding Allegations 
Never physically restrain a child, young person or vulnerable adult unless to  

o Prevent physical injury to the individual or to another person  
o Prevent damage to any property 
o Prevent or stop the individual committing a criminal offence 

 
If transporting children, young people or vulnerable adults in your car… 

o have appropriate written consent from parents 
o have appropriate insurance that covers business use 
o have a current CRB check  
o where possible have another member of employees and councillors with 

you  
 
Never share overnight accommodation with a child, young person or vulnerable adult or 
let them stay at your home unsupervised  
 
Do not engage in physical contact without clearly explaining your reasons 
 
Where possible, ensure parents supervise in changing rooms 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

44



May 2006 15

Appendix 4 
 
 

 

ACTIVITY PERMISSION FORM 
 

Name (parent/carer) 

 

Name (participant)  
 

Address   
 
 

Telephone No.        Date of Birth  
 
 

Emergency telephone no/nos*: 
*These numbers must be contactable on the day of the activity 

 
Medical Conditions  
(please give details of any medicine)  

 
Doctor’s name & No. _______________________________________________ 

 

I ………………………………………………give my son/daughter permission to take part in the 
activities operated by Huntingdonshire District Council. 

 
Signed (parent / carer) ___________________________________________  

 
Print Name _____________________________ Date ___________________ 

 
 

Photographic Statement 
Please be aware that official photographers may be in attendance during some activities. They will be easily  
identifiable and will be creating a pictorial record of the activities by taking photographs of activities. If, for any  
reason, you do not wish your child/children to be photographed please indicate this by ticking the box below. 
 
I do not wish my child/children to be photographed at activities operated by Huntingdonshire District Council    � 
 
 Use of Photographs Consent 
 I agree that photographs or video shots taken during this activity may be used by Huntingdonshire District    
 Council for purposes of promoting and improving such activities. The images may be used on the  
 organisation’s websites, in local papers or other promotional material. 
 
Signed (parent / carer) _____________________________________________ 

 
 TO TAKE PART IN THE ACTIVITY YOU MUST BRING THIS FORM WITH YOU ON THE DAY 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Huntingdonshire District Council is registered with the Information Commissioner for the purpose of processing 
personal data. Any personal data you provide on this form will be used to monitor and improve the services offered 
by the District Council. Your personal data will only be disclosed to others in accordance with your permission. If you 
have any concern about the processing of personal data by Huntingdonshire District Council please contact the Data 
Protection Officer at Huntingdonshire District Council, Pathfinder House, St Mary’s Street, Huntingdon, PE29 3TN or 
the Office of the Information Commissioner at Wycliffe House, Water Lane, Wilmslow, Cheshire, SK9 5AF

45



May 2006 16

Appendix 5 
 
 
 
 

Huntingdonshire District Council 
 
 

Medication & First Aid Policy 
 
 
Employees shall only accept responsibility for holding prescribed medication that can be 
self administered subject to the completion of a medication consent form. 
 
All medication brought to an activity must be in a sealed envelope clearly marked with 
the individual’s name, the type of medicine and the amount and frequency of the dose. 

All medicines shall be made available to the individual from a control point that will be 
identified through the risk assessment. 

Where available two activity leaders must separately have the individual verbally confirm 
their name as that written on the envelope containing the medication and the register. 
Issue will be recorded on the medication consent form. Where two are not available the 
responsible activity leader will solely undertake the above check. 
 
With the exception of the Leisure Centres, due to the nature, location and frequency of 
the activity programme individuals who are unable to self-administer their medication 
cannot be accepted. Individuals who are unable to self-administer will only be accepted 
onto Leisure Centre activities where suitably trained members of employees and 
councillors are available. 
 
If a first aid incident occurs the activity leader must be informed.  The activity leader will 
identify and agree an appropriately qualified member of employees and councillors to 
undertake first aid prior to the commencement of the activity.  
 
An accident report form will be completed after all first aid incidents. An individual’s 
parent/carer will be required to sign the form on collection of the named individual.  
 
Where an individual is not well enough to take part in an activity parents/carers will be 
notified and required to collect them.  In the event of an emergency the parents/carers 
and the appropriate emergency services will be contacted.  
 
 

46



M
ay

 2
00

6 
17

 

M
ed

ic
at

io
n 

C
on

se
nt

 F
or

m
 

 N
am

e 
 

 

B
ef

or
e 

D
ur

in
g 

A
fte

r 

D
at

e 
of

 
A

ct
iv

ity
 

N
am

e 
of

 A
ct

iv
ity

 
M

ed
ic

at
io

n 
D

os
ag

e 
Ti

m
e 

to
 b

e 
ad

m
in

is
te

re
d 

P
ar

en
t/C

ar
er

 
S

ig
na

tu
re

 

E
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

an
d 

co
un

ci
llo

rs
 to

 s
ig

n 
to

 
co

nf
irm

 m
ed

ic
at

io
n 

is
su

ed
  

P
ar

en
t/C

ar
er

 
S

ig
na

tu
re

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

47



 

May 2006 18

 
 

Community Services 
Medication Consent Form 

 

  Please complete all sections 

Name 
 
 
 

Date of Activity 
 
 
 

Name of Activity 
 
 
 

Medication 
 
 
 

Dosage 
 
 
 

Time to be Administered 
 
 
 

B
ef

or
e 

Parent/Carer Signature 

 
 
 

 
 
 

D
ur

in
g Employees and councillors to sign 

to confirm  
medication issued   

A
fte

r 

Parent/Carer Signature  

 
 
 

 

48



 

May 2006 19

Appendix 6 
 

 

Reporting Incidents or concerns of abuse or 
poor practice 
Please give as much information as possible, using extra sheets if necessary.  Once 
completed pass to your Designated Child Protection Officer or in their absence to 
another DCPO as soon as is reasonably possible  
 
Name of child, young person             Date of birth: 
or vulnerable adult: 
 
Home address:                                             Phone number: 
 
                                                                     Name of parent(s) / carer(s): 

 
 
Any special factors to be considered (e.g. language difficulties, disability, or anything 
else of relevance):  
 
 
 
Are you reporting your own concerns or passing on those of somebody else?   
 
Details: 
 
 
 
What has prompted the concerns?  Include dates, times and details of any specific 
incidents, making a clear distinction between fact, opinion and hearsay  
 
 
 
 
What (if any) physical, behavioural or indirect signs were present? 
 
 
 
Have you spoken to the child, young person or vulnerable adult?              Yes/No 
 
Record what was said using children, young people or vulnerable adults own words 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

49



 

May 2006 20

Have you spoken to the parents/carers?                                                                 Yes/No 
 
 Record what was said in their own words 
 
 
 
 
Has anybody been alleged to be the abuser?                                     Yes/No 
 
Details: 
 
 
 
 
Have you consulted anyone else?                                       Yes/No 
 
Details: 
 
 
 
 
Is there anyone else who might be involved in the incident?                                  Yes/No  
eg anyone you think has seen or heard things relating to the incident 
 
Details: 
 
 
 
Any other relevant information  
 
 
 
 
Your Name:                                                      Position: 
 
Your contact details: 
 
 
 
Your signature:                                               Date: 
 
 
Name of person receiving this report:            Position: 
 
 
 
Signature:                                                     Date: 
 
 
 

 

50



Sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 C
hi

ld
re

n,
 Y

ou
ng

 P
eo

pl
e 

an
d 

Vu
ln

er
ab

le
 A

du
lts

 
A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
 fo

r I
m

pl
em

en
tin

g 
th

e 
Po

lic
y 

 
 A

C
TI

O
N

  
LE

A
D

 
BY

 W
H

EN
  

Im
pl

em
en

t a
m

en
de

d 
an

d 
ne

w
 d

oc
um

en
ts

 
• 

R
ef

er
en

ce
 R

eq
ue

st
 F

or
m

s 
• 

S
el

f D
is

cl
os

ur
e 

Fo
rm

s 
• 

A
ct

iv
ity

 P
er

m
is

si
on

 F
or

m
s 

• 
R

ep
or

tin
g 

In
ci

de
nt

s 
or

 C
on

ce
rn

s 
of

 C
hi

ld
 A

bu
se

 o
r P

oo
r P

ra
ct

ic
e 

P
er

so
nn

el
 

D
C

PO
s 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
6 

Id
en

tif
y 

D
es

ig
na

te
d 

C
hi

ld
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
O

ffi
ce

rs
  

Le
ad

 C
P

O
 

 H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 S

af
et

y 
C

o-
or

di
na

to
r  

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
6 

Id
en

tif
y 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 fo

r s
ta

ff 
an

d 
co

un
ci

llo
rs

  
   2-

da
y 

tra
in

in
g 

co
ur

se
 fo

r L
C

P
O

 a
nd

 D
C

P
O

s 
 

 Id
en

tif
y 

po
st

s 
w

ith
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t a
cc

es
s 

to
 c

hi
ld

re
n,

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
an

d 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

 a
du

lts
 a

nd
 re

cr
ui

t t
o 

1-
da

y 
tra

in
in

g 
co

ur
se

 
  1-

da
y 

tra
in

in
g 

co
ur

se
 fo

r p
os

ts
 w

ith
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t a
cc

es
s 

to
 c

hi
ld

re
n,

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
an

d 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

 a
du

lts
 

   A
m

en
d 

ex
is

tin
g 

1-
ho

ur
 s

es
si

on
 (L

ei
su

re
 S

er
vi

ce
s)

 to
 s

up
po

rt 
w

or
k 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
su

pe
rv

is
io

n 
   A

rr
an

ge
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
of

 1
-h

ou
r t

ra
in

in
g 

se
ss

io
ns

 
   A

rra
ng

e 
fa

ci
lit

at
or

s 
to

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 s

ta
ff 

te
am

s 
as

 re
qu

es
te

d 
 

   

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 &
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t A
dv

is
er

  
  LC

P
O

 
 Tr

ai
ni

ng
 &

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t C

o-
or

di
na

to
r 

 H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 S

af
et

y 
C

o-
or

di
na

to
r a

nd
 

P
er

so
nn

el
 

 Tr
ai

ni
ng

 &
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t A
dv

is
er

 
  Tr

ai
ni

ng
 &

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t A

dv
is

er
 

  Tr
ai

ni
ng

 &
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t A
dv

is
er

  
  

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
6 

   O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

6 
 

 Au
gu

st
 2

00
6 

 
   Fr

om
 O

ct
ob

er
 

20
06

  
  D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
6 

 
   Fr

om
 M

ay
 2

00
6 

 
   Fr

om
 O

ct
ob

er
 

20
06

  
  

51



U
p-

da
te

 tr
ai

ni
ng

  
   E

ns
ur

e 
ne

w
 m

em
be

rs
 o

f s
ta

ff 
in

 re
le

va
nt

 p
os

ts
 a

cc
es

s 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 le
ve

l o
f t

ra
in

in
g 

vi
a 

LS
G

B
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
  

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 &
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t A
dv

is
er

 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
9 

   Fr
om

 D
ec

em
be

r 
20

06
  

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f p

ol
ic

y 
 

LC
P

O
 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

9 
 D

es
ig

na
te

d 
C

hi
ld

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

O
ffi

ce
rs

: 
Th

e 
Le

ad
 C

hi
ld

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

O
ffi

ce
r (

LC
P

O
)  

fo
r H

D
C

 is
 P

hi
l D

ue
rd

en
  

 D
es

ig
na

te
d 

C
hi

ld
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
O

ffi
ce

rs
 (D

C
PO

s)
  p

ro
vi

de
 a

 p
oi

nt
 o

f c
on

ta
ct

 fo
r s

ta
ff 

w
ho

 w
an

t t
o 

te
st

 c
on

ce
rn

s 
ab

ou
t S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

ch
ild

re
n,

 y
ou

ng
 

pe
op

le
 o

r v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

ad
ul

ts
 o

r t
ak

e 
fo

rw
ar

d 
a 

di
sc

lo
su

re
.  

 
 D

C
PO

s 
fo

r H
D

C
 w

ill
 b

e:
 

• 
Pe

rs
on

ne
l (

1)
 

• 
H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 S
af

et
y 

C
o-

or
di

na
to

r +
 n

om
in

at
e 

pe
op

le
 in

 L
ei

su
re

 C
en

tre
s 

• 
C

ou
nt

ry
si

de
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

(2
) 

• 
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 (1
) 

• 
H

ea
d 

of
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l a

nd
 C

om
m

un
ity

 H
ea

lth
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

 
 N

ot
es

 to
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 a

ct
io

ns
: 

1.
 

W
e 

ar
e 

m
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 L

SG
B 

an
d 

as
 s

uc
h 

ca
n 

ac
ce

ss
 th

ei
r t

ra
in

in
g 

fre
e 

of
 c

ha
rg

e.
  T

hi
s 

w
ill

 c
ov

er
 m

os
t o

f o
ur

 in
tro

du
ct

or
y 

ne
ed

s 
– 

a 
2-

da
y 

co
ur

se
 fo

r t
he

 L
C

PO
 a

nd
 D

C
PO

s 
an

d 
a 

1-
da

y 
co

ur
se

 fo
r t

ho
se

 w
ith

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t a

cc
es

s 
to

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e.
  C

ou
rs

es
 a

re
 ru

n 
th

ro
ug

h 
ou

t 
th

e 
ye

ar
 b

ut
 in

 th
e 

fir
st

 in
st

an
ce

 th
er

e 
m

ay
 b

e 
so

m
e 

be
ne

fit
 in

 a
rra

ng
in

g 
tra

in
in

g 
da

ys
 ju

st
 fo

r H
D

C
 s

ta
ff.

  O
nc

e 
al

l a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 s
ta

ff 
ar

e 
tra

in
ed

, n
ew

 s
ta

ff 
ca

n 
fit

 in
to

 o
th

er
 e

xi
st

in
g 

m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 c
ou

rs
es

.  
Tr

ai
ni

ng
 n

ee
ds

 to
 b

e 
re

pe
at

ed
 e

ve
ry

 3
 y

ea
rs

. 
 

2.
 

Po
st

s 
w

ith
 ‘s

ig
ni

fic
an

t a
cc

es
s’

 to
 c

hi
ld

re
n,

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
an

d 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

 a
du

lts
 w

ill
 in

iti
al

ly
 b

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

by
 th

e 
LC

PO
 fr

om
 th

e 
lis

t o
f p

os
ts

 
re

qu
iri

ng
 a

 C
R

B
 c

he
ck

.  
In

 fu
tu

re
 n

ew
 p

os
ts

 o
r n

ew
 m

em
be

rs
 o

f s
ta

ff 
co

m
in

g 
in

to
 o

ne
 o

f t
he

se
 p

os
ts

 w
ill 

ne
ed

 to
 a

tte
nd

 th
e 

1-
da

y 
tra

in
in

g 
ei

th
er

 a
t H

D
C

 o
r a

s 
pa

rt 
of

 a
 m

ul
ti-

ag
en

cy
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 d

ay
  

 
3.

 
A

 s
ho

rt 
in

tro
du

ct
io

n 
to

 C
hi

ld
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

fo
r p

eo
pl

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 in

 L
ei

su
re

.  
Th

is
 fo

rm
at

 w
ill 

be
 u

se
fu

l f
or

 m
an

y 
pe

op
le

 w
ho

 
w

ill
 b

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

do
in

g 
w

or
k 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e.
  T

he
 c

ur
re

nt
 s

es
si

on
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 a

nd
 a

da
pt

ed
, t

he
n 

de
liv

er
ed

 e
ar

ly
 s

pr
in

g 
ea

ch
 y

ea
r b

ef
or

e 
w

or
k 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
pl

ac
em

en
ts

 b
eg

in
 

 
4.

 
W

hi
ls

t d
ev

el
op

in
g 

th
e 

po
lic

y 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
is

su
es

 h
av

e 
be

en
 ra

is
ed

 in
 re

la
tio

n 
to

 in
di

vi
du

al
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

  I
t w

ou
ld

 b
e 

us
ef

ul
 to

 id
en

tif
y 

a 
fa

ci
lit

at
or

 
w

ith
 p

ra
ct

ic
al

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

of
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

(p
os

si
bl

y 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
LS

G
B

) w
ho

 c
ou

ld
 h

el
p 

se
rv

ic
es

 d
ev

el
op

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
in

 th
ei

r o
w

n 
te

am
s 

 

52



  
  
CABINET 8 JUNE 2006 
  

MEDIUM TERM PLAN 
REQUEST FOR RELEASE OF FUNDS 

 
(Report by the Head of Financial Services) 

 
 
1 PURPOSE 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to allow Cabinet to decide whether to 

release funds for the MTP schemes detailed in the attached annexes.  
 
 
2 BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The Council agreed in December 2005 that, having regard to the 

implications for future spending and Council Tax levels, Directors 
review with appropriate Executive Councillors the need for 
schemes/projects included in the MTP but not yet started and that 
specific prior approval be sought and obtained from the Cabinet 
before such schemes/projects are implemented. 
 

2.2 Officers have identified the schemes that they wish Cabinet to consider 
releasing funding for and have discussed them with the relevant 
Executive Councillor. 

 
2.3 Annex A summarises and the following Annexes detail these requests.  
 
 
3. RECOMMENDATION  
 
3.1 The Cabinet is recommended to release the funds shown in Annex A. 
 

 
 
 

 
ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT 1985 
None 
 
 
Contact Officer:  
Steve Couper 
Head of Financial Services     � 01480 388103

Agenda Item 5

53



  

A
N

N
EX

 A
  

 
SU

M
M

A
R

Y 
N

et
 R

ev
en

ue
 Im

pa
ct

 (£
’0

00
) 

N
et

 C
ap

ita
l (

£’
00

0)
 

 An
ne

x 
 

20
05

/ 
20

06
 

20
06

/ 
20

07
 

20
07

/ 
20

08
 

20
08

/ 
20

09
 

20
09

/ 
20

10
 

20
10

/ 
20

11
 

20
05

/ 
20

06
 

20
06

/ 
20

07
 

20
07

/ 
20

08
 

20
08

/ 
20

09
 

20
09

/ 
20

10
 

20
10

/ 
20

11
 

B
 

44
3 

- C
om

m
on

 H
ou

si
ng

 R
eg

is
te

r/C
ho

ic
e 

B
as

ed
 

Le
tti

ng
s 

 
0.

2 
0.

5 
0.

5 
0.

5 
0.

5 
 

9 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
To

ta
l a

m
ou

nt
 fo

r w
hi

ch
 re

lea
se

 n
ow

 re
qu

es
te

d 
 

0.2
 

0.5
 

0.5
 

0.5
 

0.5
 

 
9 

 
 

 
                       

54



  

  
A

N
N

EX
 B

 
 44

3 
- C

om
m

on
 H

ou
si

ng
 R

eg
is

te
r/C

ho
ic

e 
B

as
ed

 L
et

tin
gs

 
St

ev
e 

Pl
an

t  
Fi

na
nc

ia
l I

m
pa

ct
 

N
et

 R
ev

en
ue

 Im
pa

ct
 

N
et

 C
ap

ita
l 

 
20

05
/ 

20
06

 
20

06
/ 

20
07

 
20

07
/ 

20
08

 
20

08
/ 

20
09

 
20

09
/

20
10

 
20

10
/ 

20
11

 
20

11
/

20
12

 
20

05
/ 

20
06

 
20

06
/ 

20
07

 
20

07
/ 

20
08

 
20

08
/ 

20
09

 
20

09
/

20
10

 
20

10
/ 

20
11

 
20

11
/

20
12

 
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

A
pp

ro
ve

d 
B

ud
ge

t 
 

 
6 

8 
8 

8 
8 

 
 

53
 

 
 

 
 

A
lre

ad
y 

re
le

as
ed

 
 

 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

 
 

0 
 

 
 

 
A

m
ou

nt
 fo

r w
hi

ch
 re

le
as

e 
no

w
 re

qu
es

te
d 

 
0.

2 
0.

5 
0.

5 
0.

5 
0.

5 
0.

5 
 

9 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Ju

st
ifi

ca
tio

n 
fo

r R
el

ea
se

 
 Th

is
 p

ro
je

ct
 h

as
 m

ov
ed

 fo
rw

ar
d 

co
ns

id
er

ab
ly

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
a 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
 b

id
 fo

r £
18

1k
 o

f O
D

P
M

 fu
nd

in
g 

to
 h

el
p 

es
ta

bl
is

h 
a 

C
ho

ic
e 

B
as

ed
 L

et
tin

gs
 (C

B
L)

 s
ch

em
e 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
C

am
br

id
ge

 s
ub

 re
gi

on
.  

A
ll 

C
ou

nc
ils

 a
re

 re
qu

ire
d 

to
 im

pl
em

en
t C

B
L 

by
 2

01
0 

an
d 

by
 b

rin
gi

ng
 th

is
 p

ro
je

ct
 fo

rw
ar

d,
 a

cc
es

si
ng

 O
D

P
M

 c
ap

ita
l f

un
di

ng
 

an
d 

w
or

ki
ng

 in
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

ith
 th

e 
ot

he
r s

ix
 s

ub
 re

gi
on

al
 C

ou
nc

ils
 w

e 
w

ill
 g

ai
n 

ef
fic

ie
nc

ie
s 

in
 th

e 
se

t u
p 

co
st

s 
of

 th
e 

sc
he

m
e.

  H
ow

ev
er

, t
hi

s 
al

so
 m

ea
ns

 th
at

 
w

e 
ha

ve
 re

vi
se

d 
ou

r p
ro

je
ct

 ti
m

et
ab

le
 a

nd
 th

e 
ca

pi
ta

l f
un

di
ng

 re
qu

ire
d 

to
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t. 

 F
un

di
ng

 is
 n

ow
 re

qu
ire

d 
a 

ye
ar

 e
ar

lie
r i

n 
20

06
/0

7.
  E

ac
h 

su
b 

re
gi

on
al

 C
ou

nc
il 

is
 b

ei
ng

 a
sk

ed
 to

 c
on

tri
bu

te
 £

18
k 

to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

se
t u

p 
co

st
s 

al
th

ou
gh

 th
is

 a
m

ou
nt

 m
ay

 v
ar

y 
de

pe
nd

en
t u

po
n 

th
e 

fin
al

 s
pe

ci
fic

at
io

n 
an

d 
te

nd
er

 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

of
 th

e 
IT

 s
of

tw
ar

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
fo

r t
he

 s
ch

em
e.

  A
n 

ag
re

em
en

t h
as

 b
ee

n 
re

ac
he

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
Lu

m
in

us
 G

ro
up

 to
 p

ay
 5

0%
 o

f t
he

 in
iti

al
 £

18
k.

  
C

B
L 

is
 d

ire
ct

ly
 li

nk
ed

 to
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 a

 s
in

gl
e,

 o
r c

om
m

on
, H

ou
si

ng
 R

eg
is

te
r f

or
 th

e 
di

st
ric

t o
r p

os
si

bl
y 

ev
en

 th
e 

su
b 

re
gi

on
.  

Th
is

 is
 b

ei
ng

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

as
 

pa
rt 

of
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t a
nd

 m
ay

 le
ad

 to
 e

ac
h 

C
ou

nc
il 

re
vi

ew
in

g 
th

e 
IT

 s
of

tw
ar

e 
it 

us
es

 to
 h

ol
d 

its
 R

eg
is

te
r i

nf
or

m
at

io
n.

  T
he

 p
ro

je
ct

 w
ill

 a
ss

es
s 

th
e 

ef
fic

ie
nc

ie
s 

th
at

 
m

ay
 b

e 
ga

in
ed

 fr
om

 a
dm

in
is

te
rin

g 
a 

jo
in

t R
eg

is
te

r a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

su
b 

re
gi

on
 fr

om
 a

 s
in

gl
e 

da
ta

ba
se

 a
nd

 if
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 th

is
 w

ill 
be

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
sp

ec
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 
jo

in
tly

 p
ro

cu
re

 a
n 

IT
 p

ac
ka

ge
 th

at
 c

an
 p

er
fo

rm
 b

ot
h 

th
e 

C
B

L 
an

d 
R

eg
is

te
r f

un
ct

io
ns

. 
If 

ad
di

tio
na

l s
et

 u
p 

co
st

s 
ar

e 
lik

el
y 

to
 b

e 
in

cu
rr

ed
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

m
ay

 in
cr

ea
se

 a
lth

ou
gh

 a
 w

id
er

 c
os

t s
ha

rin
g 

ag
re

em
en

t w
ill 

be
 s

ou
gh

t w
ith

 th
e 

sm
al

le
r s

to
ck

 h
ol

di
ng

 h
ou

si
ng

 a
ss

oc
ia

tio
ns

 in
 th

e 
su

b 
re

gi
on

 to
 m

in
im

is
e 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 im
pa

ct
.  

 
 C

ab
in

et
 is

, t
he

re
fo

re
, r

eq
ue

st
ed

 to
 a

pp
ro

ve
 th

e 
in

iti
al

 re
le

as
e 

of
 £

9k
 to

 c
ov

er
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’s
 c

ap
ita

l c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

to
 th

is
 p

ro
je

ct
.  

A
 fu

rth
er

 re
po

rt 
w

ill 
be

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
fo

r C
ab

in
et

 o
nc

e 
th

e 
fin

al
 c

os
ts

 fr
om

 jo
in

tly
 p

ro
cu

rin
g 

th
e 

IT
 s

of
tw

ar
e 

fo
r t

he
 p

ro
je

ct
 a

re
 c

le
ar

er
. 

55



56

This page is intentionally left blank



1 

  
  
CABINET 8th JUNE 2006 
 

 
TREASURY MANAGEMENT ANNUAL REPORT 2005/06 

(Report by the Head of Financial Services) 
 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1. During 2005/06 the Council had investments averaging £72.5m. The 
majority of the investments were managed by Fund Managers with 
the balance in-house: 

Manager  

Investec Asset Management £26.5m 
Alliance Capital £26.5m 
City Deposit Cash Managers (CDCM)   £20m 
In-house – average investments for the year £4.0m 
In-house – average borrowing for the year £4.5m 

 
2.1 The purpose of this report is to review the performance of the funds 

during 2005/06, consider if the strategy that the Council has adopted 
has been effective, and address any issues of risk and compliance 
with statutory and regulatory requirements. 

 
2. PERFORMANCE OF FUNDS 

2.1. The Cabinet has received quarterly reports informing them of the 
performance of the funds through the year.  The performance for the 
final quarter and for the year as a whole, are given below: 

 PERFORMANCE FOR THE QUARTER 
JANUARY 2006 – MARCH 2006 

 Performance 
 

% 

Benchmark 
 

% 

Variation 
from 

Benchmark 
% 

 Industry  
Average 

% 

Variation 
from 

Average 
% 

Investec 0.74 0.83 -0.09 0.88 -0.14 

Alliance 0.95 0.83 +0.12 0.88 +0.07 

CDCM 1.26 1.13 +0.13 0.88 +0.38 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 6

57



2 

 PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR 
APRIL 2005 – MARCH 2006 

 Performance 
 

% 

Benchmark 
 

% 

Variation 
from 

Benchmark 
% 

 Industry  
Average 

% 

Variation 
from 

Average 
% 

Investec 4.74 4.74 0.00 4.59 +0.15 

Alliance 4.87 4.74 +0.13 4.59 +0.28 

CDCM 5.00 4.61 +0.39 4.59 +0.41 

In-house 4.76 4.54 +0.22 N/A N/A 

 
 
2.3   For the third year running, CDCM has performed better than Alliance 

Capital and Investec. In contrast Investec only just achieved their 
benchmark but did exceed the industry average. 

 
2.4   The Capital Receipts Advisory Group (CRAG), which consists of three 

Members, has met with the Fund Managers on two occasions during 
the year. Assisted by officers and Butlers, our investment advisors, 
they have monitored performance and been able to question the 
Managers on their strategies. 

 
 
3. INVESTEC 

3.1. Investec’s performance since the start of the new mandates in July 
2000 has been varied. In 2001/02 they produced a poor performance; 
2002/03 was an outstanding year, 2003/04 was another poor year, in 
2004/05 they produced satisfactory returns. Investec started off 
2005/06 providing satisfactory returns in a difficult market, however 
they misjudged the gilt market in February and March 2006, and this 
is reflected in their returns for the last quarter where they achieved 
neither the benchmark nor the industry average.  

4. ALLIANCE CAPITAL 

4.1. Alliance Capital continued to invest in corporate bonds and floating 
rate notes which contrasts with the strategy of Investec, which mostly 
deals in gilts and certificates of deposit.  Alliance Capital took a 
defensive strategy due to the low yields on gilts which meant that they 
invested in short-dated securities.  This limited their ability to produce 
an exceptional performance but provided protection against any fall in 
value of bonds. 

5. CDCM 

5.1. CDCM can only invest in time deposits but they have exploited the 
opportunity to invest part of the portfolio for up to 5 years. In 2005/06 
their return continued to benefit from longer-term investments made 
in 2003/04 at rates over 5%. Since then they have continued to seek 
to maximise returns by using conventional investments, forward rate 
agreements and products where the borrower has an option to 
periodically vary the interest rate but we have the option to withdraw 
the funds if the new rate is unacceptable. 

58



3 

 

6. IN-HOUSE INVESTMENT OF FUNDS 

6.1. Any balance of funds is invested ‘in-house’. Whereas the external 
fund managers have a fixed amount to invest, the ‘in-house’ funds 
fluctuate on a daily basis due to the volatility of the cash flow to and 
from the Authority. 

6.2. The cash position varied from available funds of £11.5m to 
borrowings of £14.5m, with an average of £0.5m borrowed. This 
complied with the strategy which was to ensure that the majority of 
the funds were with Fund Managers. The year ended with substantial 
borrowing of £14.5m but this was a deliberate decision to keep the 
funds with the Fund Manages for as long as possible.  Alliance 
Capital and Investec both returned £5m in mid-April 2006.  The 
prudential indicator, the operational level for borrowing of £16m was 
not exceeded. 

6.3 As any investments are generally needed back within a few weeks 
there is very limited scope to better the 7 day rate.  Nevertheless in 
2005/06 it was exceeded by 0.22%. 

7. STRATEGY 

7.1. The Council agreed new broader mandates with the three Fund 
Managers in July 2000.  The size of its reserves meant that the 
Authority could take the view that the Fund Managers should 
maximise the returns in the medium term, three years, rather than on 
an annual basis. Now that the new mandates have been in place for 
nearly five years, it can be seen that this strategy has been effective.   

7.2. The usual benchmark for Local Authority investment funds is the 7-
day rate. We selected a 3 month cash deposit rate for CDCM and a 
combination of 3 month cash and 0-5year gilts for Investec and 
Alliance Capital, as their benchmarks.  All 3 funds have exceeded the 
cumulative 3 month rate of 28.9%  

 CUMULATIVE PERFORMANCE SINCE START OF MANDATES 
JULY 2000* – MARCH 2006 

 
 Performance 

 
% 

Benchmark 
 

% 

Variation 
from 

benchmark 
% 

Industry 
Average 

 
% 

Variation 
from 

Average 
% 

Investec 31.7 31.3 +0.4 29.7 +2.0 
Alliance 31.9 30.7 +1.2 29.1 +2.8 
CDCM 32.4 28.9 +3.5 29.7 +2.7 

*   The mandate with Alliance Capital started in August 2000 
 
 

7.3. The above table of cumulative returns shows that the performance of 
Alliance Capital and Investec was almost identical after nearly 6 
years. 

59



4 

7.4. Investec continues to invest mainly in gilts and CD’s with a maximum 
of 3% of the portfolio being in corporate bonds.  The graph below 
shows the distribution of investments at the end of each quarter. 

 

7.5. Alliance Capital has from the start of their appointment, had a 
different strategy to Investec.  Their performance has been much 
steadier, without the peaks and troughs shown by Investec. The 
mandates for Investec and Alliance Capital also allow them to invest 
in corporate bonds, floating rate notes (FRNs) and supra-nationals 
(bonds that are listed outside London).  Alliance Capital has 
maximised the opportunity to purchase these securities, with a 
maximum holding of 33% in corporate bonds. The graph below shows 
the types of investments they include in their portfolio; the categories 
A2 to Aaa are categories of corporate bonds 

 

7.6. CDCM rely completely on term deposits with banks, building societies 
and other local authorities thus avoiding fluctuations in the value of 
the investments. They have been proactive in arranging forward deals 
at attractive rates, and using deals where the rate can be 
renegotiated every quarter, with the lender (HDC) having the right to 
take repayment if the new rate is unacceptable. 

7.7. Copies of the mandates, as at March 2006, are attached at Annex A. 

 Distribution of Investments -  Investec

 

 

0 

20% 

 

40% 

 

60% 

 

80% 

U/i cash 0-1 month
CDs 1-3 month

CDs 3-6 month
CDs 6-12 month

CDs Aaa Corp Gilts 

2005 Jun 2005 Sep 2005 Dec 2006 Mar 

Distribution of Investments - Alliance 

0 

20% 

40% 

60% 

80% 

U/i 
cash 

0-1 
Month  
CDs 

 

1-3 
Month 
CDs 

3-6 
Month
CDs 

 

6-12
Mth 
CDs
 

 

0ver 1-
Yr  CDs 

FRNs A2
Corp

A1
Corp

Aa3
Corp

Aa2
Corp

Aa1 
Corp 

Aaa 
Corp 

Gilts 

2005 Jun 2005 Sep 2005 Dec 2006 Mar 

60



5 

During 2005/06 the following changes were made following requests 
from the Fund Managers, advice from Butlers and consultation with 
the Capital Receipts Advisory Group. 

• The maximum investment in corporate bonds was increased from 
40% of the portfolio to 50% 

• The maximum investment in floating rate notes was increased 
from 40% of the portfolio to 50%.  However the maximum 
investment in corporate bonds and floating rate notes combined 
remained at 50% 

7.7   The former capital regulations required the Authority’s treasury 
management staff to approve any purchase of non-approved 
investments. The 2003/04 ODPM guidance on investments 
categorised corporate bonds as ‘non-specified’ and their purchase did 
not need to be approved by the Authority.  However we continued this 
requirement initially, but in 2005/06 it was abandoned. 

 

8. RISK IMPLICATIONS 

8.1 The Treasury Management Policy approved by the Cabinet on 27th 
February 2002, emphasises the importance of controlling risk i.e. 
returns should be maximised but only at an acceptable level of risk.   

8.2 There are three main elements of risk. Firstly, that the borrower will 
be unable to return the loan when it is due, secondly that the Fund 
Managers will take the wrong view on interest rate movements 
leading to poor returns, thirdly that the investments are not sufficiently 
liquid to be able to be sold to meet the cash flow needs of the 
Authority. Risk was an important factor taken into account when the 
mandates were first agreed in 2000.  Although the Council allows the 
Fund Managers to invest in instruments not used by most Councils, 
the parameters included in the mandates are designed to minimise all 
types of risks. 

8.3 The Authority has minimised these risks in the following ways: 

Risk of the borrower being unable to repay the investment 

• A significant proportion of the funds are invested in 
Government “gilts”, Certificates of Deposit or Local 
Authorities. These are all totally safe. 

• As far as other investments are concerned, the proportion of 
which is limited by the mandates, a rigid system of credit 
rating ensures that only the very safest organisations (those 
with high credit ratings) are dealt with, together with limits on 
the value placed with one issuer.  The Fund Managers are 
also highly attuned to any market intelligence that might 
suggest a borrower is likely to have their credit rating reduced 
in the future. None of the treasury management transactions 
during the year have compromised the rules that have been 
set. 

61



6 

Risk of the wrong view on interest rates being taken 

• Three Fund Managers, each with their own strategy for 
investments, have been engaged. The diversity in their 
approach minimises the chance of them all taking the wrong 
view. 

• The Authority can still take a longer-term view on investment 
performance which gives the fund managers the latitude to 
retain investments where they feel that returns will be made 
next year rather than this. 

• The mandates limit the duration of the investments which 
reduces the impact on the value if the interest rate view turns 
out to be incorrect. 

Risk of the funds not being available to be returned to the 
Council 

• Investec and Alliance invest in instruments that are all liquid.  
The mandate for CDCM allows it to invest a maximum of 25% 
of the fund, (currently £5m) for longer than 3 years.  As the 
total funds invested are reduced, the duration of the 
investments allowed in the mandate, will need to be amended 
and your officers monitor this regularly 

Seeking Professional Advice 

• Butlers are employed as our Treasury Management 
Consultants and their advice is sought before any change is 
made to the mandates. They also provide reports on the 
Fund Managers’ performance and compare it with the 
industry average. 

Active Monitoring 

• As well as quarterly reports to Cabinet and meetings 
between Fund Managers and the Capital Receipts 
Advisory Group, your officers monitor returns each month. 

 

9. COMPLIANCE WITH REGULATIONS AND CODES 

9.1 All the treasury management transactions have been carried out in 
accordance with the legislation and regulations concerning treasury 
management. 

9.2 The Council met the requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice on 
Treasury Management by adopting a Policy Statement in February 
2002 and Treasury Management Practices in 2003/04. These assist 
both Members and Officers in the effective management and control 
of treasury management activities.   

9.3 In 2003/4 CIPFA introduced the Prudential Code for Capital Finance 
and the ODPM brought out new guidance on Local Government 
investments.  Both of these became effective from 1 April 2004. 

62



7 

These require the Council to approve Prudential Indicators and an 
annual Treasury Management Strategy. Those for 2006/07 were 
approved at the Council meeting on 22nd February 2006. 

 

10. CONCLUSION  

10.1   The wider mandate given to Investec and Alliance Capital has given 
them some freedom to invest in securities other than gilts and 
certificates of deposit. Alliance Capital gave a satisfactory 
performance in 2005/06 that was better than their benchmark and the 
industry average. Investec continues to invest mostly in gilts and 
certificates of deposit and their activity in the gilt market in the fourth 
quarter cost them performance. They just achieved the benchmark 
although they marginally out-performed the industry average. CDCM 
produced the best returns partly from longer-term investments made 
in 2003/04 with rates over 5%. 

10.2   Due to the nature of the Authority’s strategy, performance should not 
be judged on the basis of a single year. The results from the start of 
the new broader mandates show that the Authority has adopted a 
sound strategy and selected Fund Managers that have exceeded 
their benchmarks and the industry average over the five years.   

10.3   The Authority has carried out its treasury management activities with 
due regard to minimising risk, and in accordance with legislation.  It 
has adopted the CIPFA Code on Treasury Management, the 
Prudential Code for Capital Finance and the ODPM’s guidance on 
Local Government investments.   

 
11. RECOMMENDATION 

11.1   It is recommended that the content of this report be noted 

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

    2005/06 cash management files and working papers 

    Quarterly reports to the Cabinet 

 

CONTACT OFFICER 

Mrs Eleanor Smith         Accountancy Manager        Tel. 01480 388157 

63



8 

ANNEX A 
EXTERNAL FUND MANAGER MANDATES 

Alliance Capital and Investec 
Duration of 
investments 

Average duration of Fund must not exceed 3 years 
No individual investment shall exceed 10 years 

Types of 
investments 

Marketable securities issued or guaranteed by the UK 
Government (Gilts) 
Deposits made with or marketable certificates of deposit 
issued by approved banks (CDs) 
Sovereign and supranational securities, including floating rate 
notes (Bonds) 
Corporate, bank and building society securities, including 
floating rate notes, commercial paper and asset backed 
securities (Corporate Bonds) 

Credit Ratings CORPORATE INVESTMENTS  
Standard & Poors AA- or Aa3 or above or equivalent 
A- or A3 or better, maximum term 3 years 
NON-UK GOVERNMENTS AND SUPRANATIONALS 
AA- or Aa3 or above or equivalent for non-UK Governments 
AAA or Aaa for Supranationals 
SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS 
Standard & Poor’s A1/P1 or above or equivalent 

Maximum 
limits 

50% Corporate Bonds  
20% Supranational and sovereign securities 
50% Floating rate notes 
75% Gilts  
75% Corporate Bonds plus Gilts  
50% Corporate bonds + supranational and sovereign  
         securities + floating rate notes 
 
20% with any one counterparty (except UK Government) for 
fixed deposits and CDs 
10% per issuer or £1m for corporate bonds and FRNs 
10% per issuer for securities guaranteed by non-UK EU 
Governments and supranational securities 

Benchmark 60% 3 month LIBID  
40% 0-5 year gilt index. 

 
 
CDCM 

Duration of 
investments 

Up to and including 5 years maximum maturity 
No more than 25% may be invested for longer than 3 years 

Types of 
investments 

Fixed Deposits 
Deposits at call, two or seven day notice 

Credit Ratings F1+ by FITCH IBCA or equivalent 
Maximum 
limits 

£3m per institution and group for English and Scottish 
Clearing Banks and their subsidiaries, and Overseas Banks 
on list of authorised counterparties. 
Building Societies 
With assets more than £2,000m           £5m 
With assets more than £1,000m           £3m 
Other building societies in the top 25    £2m 

Benchmark 3 month LIBID 
 

64



CABINET 8TH JUNE 2006 
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
(SERVICE SUPPORT) 

13th JUNE 2006 

 
 

A14 ELLINGTON TO FEN DITTON IMPROVEMENT –  
HUNTINGDON VIADUCT TECHNICAL STUDY 
(Report by Director of Operational Services) 

 
1. INTRODUCTION  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to consider the outcomes of jointly 

commissioned Technical Study on the implications of the retention or 
removal of the Viaduct. The study was jointly-funded by the District & 
County Council’s, the Highways Agency, the Eastern Region 
Government Office, EEDA (East of England Development Agency) 
and Cambridgeshire Horizons and carried out by WS Atkins. 

 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 At their meeting on 6th September 2001, Cabinet considered the 

outcomes and recommendations of the Cambridge to Huntingdon 
Multi-Modal Study (CHUMMS) and the emerging support for the 
Preferred Plan. This plan included the provision of a new 3-lane dual 
carriageway with the existing A14 downgraded to a local road and the 
removal of the existing A14 Viaduct in Huntingdon. 

 
2.2 Full Council subsequently considered this matter on 26th September 

2001, including a number of issues arising from Cabinet, and 
endorsed a formal response to the Regional Planning Panel of the 
East of England Local Government Conference. 

 
2.3 In the first-half of 2005, the Highways Agency followed up the 

CHUMMS Preferred Plan with a consultation on a range of options for 
the new A14 which were again considered by Cabinet on 9th June and 
Full Council on 28th June 2005. A formal response of this Council was 
sent to the Highways Agency. A key issue arising from this 
consultation was the future of the Huntingdon Viaduct and whether or 
not this should be retained or removed as part of the alternative 
proposals relating to the provision of either a 2 or 3-lane dual 
carriageway on the line of the new A14. 

 
2.4 That formal response outlined that the choice of preferred route would 

have profound and significant effects on both Huntingdon and the 
wider area and stressed that the importance of any choice being 
made must not be solely based on highway network implications or 
just environmental effects but that economic considerations must also 
be taken into account. The response also stressed that the real issues 
are which option would deliver the best long-term highway solution, 
ensure the vitality and long-term viability of Huntingdon and allow the 
solution to be accommodated without detriment to the environment. 

Agenda Item 7

65



2.5 The response also details a range of specific issues requiring further 
consideration. This includes the view of the Council that a junction 
should not be included on the new route where it crosses the A1198 
and that any such proposal would be vigorously opposed. 

 
2.6 In terms of the Huntingdon Viaduct, the Council stressed that it 

continued to support the removal of this structure, the de-trunking of 
the route and connection to the local road network in line with the 
original CHUMMS Preferred Option. This was based on the long-term 
opportunities that reorganisation of traffic movements around 
Huntingdon could provide and that these could not be achieved with 
the Alternative option. The need for the Technical Study and detailed 
modelling for the Viaduct options was stressed in order that both this 
Council and all other affected parties could make sound and reasoned 
decisions regarding which option should be pursued. 

 
3. THE HUNTINGDON VIADUCT TECHNICAL STUDY 
 
3.1 To assess the potential impact of the viaduct removal, it was 

necessary to undertake extensive traffic surveys and construct a 
detailed traffic model covering the whole of Huntingdon and the 
surrounding area. The model incorporated the latest information on 
development proposals in line with the Structure Plan, current Local 
Plan, Urban Design Frameworks for sites in Huntingdon and the draft 
Core Strategy. The model replicates current traffic demand and 
forecasts future traffic patterns. A series of tests were carried out to 
examine a range of alternative new road links and options in and 
around the area of the viaduct, which could be necessary if the 
viaduct were to be removed and the existing A14 route was 
connected into the local road network once a new A14 was in place. 

 
3.3 The model has demonstrated that the remaining old A14 between 

Godmanchester and Spittals does little to assist the main local 
movements in and around Huntingdon but does carry out a crucial 
role as a river crossing (of the Great Ouse) for local HGV 
movements. For this reason the river bridge needs to remain.  

 
3.4 A range of links have been identified which could be provided to 

create more highway space and better integration with local roads 
offering more choice in the routing of journeys within Huntingdon 
including: 

• From the North,  a link from the Spittals Interchange along the 
line of the existing A14 to Brampton Road (Spittals Link), 

• From the South, a link along the line of the existing A14 where it 
crosses the River Great Ouse at Godmanchester to Brampton 
Road, at the eastern (town) side of the railway (Common Link), 

• The West of Town Centre Link Road (WOTC), from Brampton 
Road at the eastern side of the railway bridge to Ermine Street. 
This is linked to development proposals currently being 

66



formulated as part of the District Council ‘Huntingdon Vision’ 
process, 

• A short link from the Common Link crossing Mill Common to 
join the Ring Road in the vicinity of St Mary’s Street (Pathfinder 
Link), 

• A relocation of the rail station access to the eastern side of the 
Station from Brampton Road to a new point on the Common 
Link. 

 
3.5 The study found that with this range of links: 
 

• There is the potential for further traffic growth within the town 
and around the ring road 

• The design of the junctions on Brampton Road and their 
physical separation is critical to the effectiveness of the 
scheme while also creating an attractive link for local traffic 
and is  important in discouraging through traffic, 

•    A key issue will be the capacity of the railway bridge at 
Brampton Road and the number of traffic lanes that can be 
accommodated together with the provision for cyclists and 
pedestrians. 

 
4. THE STUDY OUTCOMES 
 
4.1 In summary, the Study has concluded that the original CHUMMS 

option, including the removal of the viaduct, is viable and that the 
highway network in Huntingdon can be modified to the benefit of the 
town and surrounding area. The best performing option(s) of the 
Study potentially offer significant benefits compared to the Alternative 
option, which indicate the potential for reduced traffic flows and delay 
especially on the Ring Road and in Godmanchester. 

 
4.2 In terms of the various options that have been investigated, the Study 

includes a Preferred Option, known as the ‘Best Performing Option’, 
and a simplified new road layout plan is attached at Annex A.  

 
4.3     While the District Council did not support the provision of a junction 

between the new A14 and the A1198 as part of the CHUMMS and 
subsequent consultation, the County Council did ask Atkins to 
examine the likely impact of providing a set of east facing slip roads 
from the proposed A14 to the A1198 at its intended crossing south of 
the Wood Green Animal Centre. The County Council thought that 
such a limited junction might offer advantage to some traffic that might 
otherwise travel through the centre of Huntingdon. In the event, it 
appears from the model that this is unlikely to happen and such a 
junction is most likely to attract extra traffic from the south along the 
A1198, which would not be desirable. 

 
4.4 A considerable amount of work was undertaken in the environmental 

assessment of the options and in summary there are clear 

67



environmental advantages with the CHUMMS strategy option versus 
the Alternative strategy option. Subject to further detailed refinement, 
there appear to be no major detrimental environmental impacts with 
the options considered. 

 
4.5 In terms of timescale, the Secretary of State’s programme for 

completion of the new A14 scheme is given as being between 2011 
and 2015. As a result of this Study and on the assumption that the 
Secretary of State pursues the CHUMMS option, work on the Viaduct 
removal could not start until the new A14 south of Godmanchester 
and Brampton is in place. Given that removal of the viaduct would be 
a lengthy process, including the need for “railway possessions”, the 
timescale for completion of the full CHUMMS strategy could be a 
further two years after around 2017. An exception is the West of 
Town Centre link which could be potentially provided earlier in 
conjunction with redevelopment and regeneration of that part of the 
town. 

  
 
5. OTHER IMPORTANT ISSUES 
 
5.1 There would also be significant benefits to the town in terms of 

releasing the potential for future development and for the delivery of 
the overall Huntingdon Vision project being led by the District Council. 
This is an important consideration for the future integration of 
development with its transport impacts and for how this necessary 
growth could be accommodated within emerging development plans. 

 
5.2 The land to the west of town centre is one area identified with 

potential that will allow Huntingdon to grow beyond the constraints of 
the ring road and add to the vitality and viability of the town centre 
with additional sites released for mixed uses including housing, 
business, parking and possibly retail. 

 
5.3 The Huntingdon Ring Road and the surrounding roads have been 

designated as an Air Quality Management Area and this is also a 
major consideration. The aim of any AQMA Action Plan is to identify a 
programme to address the issues. Without the viaduct it is considered 
at this stage in the process that a significant reduction in traffic flows 
would significantly aid the delivery of any emerging Action Plan. 

 
5.4        The range of links  should also:  

• Allow some traffic relief on the Medieval bridge and within Post 
Street and Cambridge Road in Godmanchester 

• Circumvent the need for  additional traffic lanes on the ring-road in 
the town centre to be constructed  as proposed in the Market 
Town Strategy 

• Provide additional options for traffic movements  around 
Hinchingbrooke Park  

 

68



6. CONSULTATION 
 
6.1 As part of this Study, discussions have taken place with emergency 

services and the public sector land owners simply to gain their initial 
views. 

 
6.2 A presentation was made on 11th May on the outcomes of the Study 

to local Members of the County and District Council’s whose Wards 
encompass the Study area. 

 
6.3 It is intended to bring to a subsequent Cabinet meeting the revised 

Vision for Huntingdon. The Vision will incorporate the road proposals 
described in this study. 

 
6.4 Once the Vision has been considered by Cabinet there will be an 

exhibition held at a location in the town where the public will be given 
the first opportunity to see how the future of Huntingdon could 
develop should the Secretary of State accept the preferred route 
supported by this Council. The Vision document will be used to inform 
the allocations that will form part of a Development Plan Document 
and Action Plan to be published in the middle of next year. 

  
 
7.  CONCLUSIONS 
 
7.1 The Consultant’s Huntingdon Viaduct Technical Study has concluded 

that the CHUMMS Strategy is viable and that the highway network 
within Huntingdon could be satisfactorily modified to accommodate 
the removal of the viaduct.  

 
7.2 The potential timescale for the works examined in this Study is not 

definite since they could not be implemented before completion of the 
new A14 and are dependent on the Secretary of State’s Preferred 
Route Announcement.  While physical works are likely to be some 
years away, such an announcement in the near future would enable 
design work to begin promptly on the main scheme as a whole. 

 
7.3 The Secretary of State’s decision and a Preferred Route 

Announcement, when he may take the opportunity to select one of the 
strategies, is currently held in abeyance awaiting the outcome of a 
case in the Court of Appeal. Any further legal challenge would have 
the potential to delay any announcement. 

 
7.4 Environmentally the CHUMMS option is generally considered to be 

beneficial to Huntingdon when compared to the Alterative option and 
more fundamentally it is considered that the CHUMMS option will 
also stimulate a raft of other redevelopment and regeneration 
opportunities described above. 

 

69



7.5 Finally, it needs to be recognised that this Study does not seek to 
determine any part of the final form of the Ellington to Fen Ditton 
Improvement Scheme.  Its purpose is to inform the Highways Agency 
in its decisions on that scheme.  

 
7.6 If the Secretary of State decides to proceed with the “CHUMMS” 

option, he should be urged, in consultation with the County and 
District Councils, to undertake further analysis and design work to 
determine the optimum local highway link and junction layout and to 
jointly promote the local highway links along with the other statutory 
orders for the wider A14 scheme. 

 
8.  RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
It is recommended that Cabinet approve the following; 
 

i) The District Council notes and welcomes the conclusions 
of the Atkins’ A14 Huntingdon Viaduct Study. This has 
examined the potential of removing the existing A14 viaduct 
as part of the Highways Agency’s upgrade of the A14 from 
Ellington to Fen Ditton and has concluded that the 
CHUMMS Strategy is viable and that the highway network in 
Huntingdon could be modified to accommodate the removal 
of the A14 viaduct and provide significant benefit to traffic 
flows in and around Huntingdon.   
ii) The District Council commends the report to the 
Secretary of State for his consideration as part of the 
decisions on the options for the development of the A14 
improvement scheme. 
iii) The District Council supports the principles of the 
CHUMMS option strategy as presented at the Highways 
Agency’s Public Consultation in 2005 and would urge the 
Secretary of State; 

 

1. to develop further the detail of new highway links 
and junctions  which would be required to 
successfully implement that part of the strategy in 
Huntingdon as part of the A14 scheme in 
consultation with the County Council and 
Huntingdonshire District Council, and 
 

    2. to take forward and promote the necessary 
statutory orders for such links along with those that 
will be necessary for the wider A14 scheme and its 
associated local access roads. 

 
 
 

70



BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
CHUMMS Report August 2001 
Cabinet Agenda & Minutes 6th September 2001  
Full Council Agenda & Minutes 26th September 2001 
Highways Agency Consultation Documentation March 2005 
Cabinet Agenda & Minutes 9th June 2005 
Full Council Agenda & Minutes 28th June 2005 
District Council response to Highways Agency 4th July 2005 
WSAtkins Huntingdon Viaduct Technical Study Report April 2006 
 
 
Contact 
Officer: 

Stuart Bell – Transportation Team Leader 

 � (01480) 388387 
e.mail  stuart.bell@huntsdc.gov.uk 

 

 
 

71



72

This page is intentionally left blank



73



74

This page is intentionally left blank



 

   
 
 
COMT 
CABINET 

                         23RD MAY 2006 
                         8TH JUNE 2006 

 
 

WARBOYS CONSERVATION AREA:  
CHARACTER STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT PLAN 

CONSULTATION DOCUMENTS 
(Report by Planning Policy Manager) 

 
 
1. INTRODUCTION  
 
1.1 Cabinet is asked to consider the attached draft documents and approve 

them for consultation purposes. Once representations have been 
received and considered, it is intended to seek Cabinet’s endorsement 
of the documents for use as material considerations in the context of 
planning proposals. 

  
 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The District Council is committed to the production of Conservation Area 

Character Statements to provide an analysis of the special interest of all 
the district’s 63 Conservation Areas. These documents will be used to 
guide decisions on planning matters and other changes to the fabric of 
Conservation Areas to ensure that the character and appearance of 
Conservation Areas is not diminished.  It is also hoped that the 
publication of these documents will help to increase the general public’s 
awareness of the special qualities that make the District’s Conservation 
Areas unique. 

 
2.2 The existing Warboys Conservation Area Character Statement was 

adopted in July 2000 following a period of public consultation. Under the 
new Best Value Performance Indicators (BVPIs), all character 
statements should be reviewed in a five year rolling programme to 
ensure that the advice being offered is relevant and up-to-date. As the 
Warboys document only recently expired and already meets the latest 
guidance for the production of such material, it was considered 
appropriate to update its contents and repeat the public consultation 
procedure.  

 
 
3. THE CHARACTER ASSESSMENT 

 
3.1 The contents of the Character Statement follows a previously-agreed 

pattern, which conveys the special architectural and historical interest of 
the Conservation Areas through maps, photographic illustrations and 
written text.  Specific references are made to:- 

 
• The historical development of Warboys 

• The essential characteristics of the Conservation Area including 

important views, focal points and landmark buildings. 

Agenda Item 8

75



 

• The green open spaces, trees and gardens in the Conservation 

Area. 

• The architectural styles within the village. 

• The distribution of construction materials. 

• Examples of traditional local detailing. 

 

3.2 This approach conforms with English Heritage’s recent publication 
Guidance on conservation area appraisals 2006. It has been necessary to 
make only minor changes and updates to the original document. 

 
  
4. THE MANAGEMENT PLAN 
 
4.1 Since 2000, another recent English Heritage publication Guidance on the 

management of conservation areas 2006 has given further assistance to 
local authorities in the preparation of enhancement plans.  

 
4.2 In response to this, a Management Plan has now been prepared for the 

Warboys Conservation Area. The Plan identifies potential weaknesses 
within the Area, as well as opportunities for enhancement.  

 
4.3 The Plan also identifies the requirement to review the Conservation Area 

boundary as part of the rolling update of the material (ie within 5 years). 
This is considered to address the on-going management of the 
Conservation Area required by the new BVPIs but also honours the 
Cabinet’s decision of April 2003 to support Conservation Area boundary 
reviews.  

 
 
5. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
5.1 That Cabinet considers approves the Draft Character Statement and 

Management Plan for the Warboys Conservation Area for a period of 
public consultation. 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 

1. Conservation Area Boundary Review Policy Document, Huntingdonshire 
District Council, January 2003. 

 
 
Contact Officer: Chris Surfleet 

Design & Implementation Team Leader 
 � 01480 388476 
 

76



CABINET  8TH JUNE 2006 

 

 

REPRESENTATION ON ORGANISATIONS 

(Report by the Head of Administration) 

 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The Council’s representation on a variety of organisations is reviewed 

annually. Listed in the attached schedule are those organisations to 
which the Council has been invited to nominate representatives for 
2006/07. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 The Cabinet are therefore invited to make their nominations where 

required to the organisations referred to in the schedule appended 
hereto. 

 
2.2 In the event that changes are required to the District Council’s 
 representation during the course of the year the Deputy Leader and 
 Vice Chairman of the Cabinet be authorised to nominate alternative 
 representatives as necessary. 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
File held in the Administration Division of the Central Services Directorate. 
 
Contact Officer:   Helen Taylor 
   Senior Democratic Services Officer 
   (01480) 388008 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 9

77



78

This page is intentionally left blank



F:
\M

em
be

r S
up

po
rt\

Mi
sc

ell
an

eo
us

\20
06

\R
ep

sO
rg

an
isa

tio
n 0

6-
7 c

 
31

/05
/06

 
1 

 

  

R
E

P
R

E
S

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N
 O

N
 O

R
G

A
N

IS
A

T
IO

N
S

 2
00

6/
20

07
 

 

 
 

N
om

in
at

in
g/

 
A

pp
oi

nt
in

g 
Pa

ne
l 

R
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
e(

s)
 fo

r 
20

05
/2

00
6 

R
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
e(

s)
 fo

r 
20

06
/2

00
7 

A
pp

ro
x 

N
o.

 o
f M

ee
tin

gs
 

Pe
r A

nn
um

 
Al

lo
w

an
ce

 P
ay

ab
le

 
S 

– 
Su

bs
is

te
nc

e 
T 

- T
ra

ve
lli

ng
 

Te
rm

 o
f 

Ap
po

in
tm

en
t 

A
dv

is
or

y 
an

d 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
C

ou
ns

el
lin

g 
S

er
vi

ce
 

fo
r 

H
un

tin
gd

on
sh

ire
 –

 M
an

ag
em

en
t C

tte
e 

C
ab

in
et

 
C

llr
 M

rs
 S

 A
 M

en
cz

er
 

C
llr

 M
rs

 S
 A

 M
en

cz
er

 
6 

at
 H

un
tin

gd
on

 
S

 &
 T

 
O

rg
an

is
at

io
n 

re
im

bu
rs

es
 

tra
ve

lli
ng

 

A
nn

ua
l 

A
rc

hi
ve

s 
C

ou
nt

y 
A

dv
is

or
y 

G
ro

up
 

C
ab

in
et

 
C

llr
 J

 E
 G

ar
ne

r 
C

llr
 J

 E
 G

ar
ne

r 
3 

at
 H

un
tin

gd
on

, 
W

is
be

ch
, C

am
br

id
ge

 
S

 &
 T

 
A

nn
ua

l 

A
rts

 F
or

um
 fo

r C
am

br
id

ge
sh

ire
 a

nd
 P

et
er

bo
ro

ug
h 

C
ab

in
et

 
C

llr
 M

rs
 J

 C
ha

nd
le

r a
nd

 
H

ea
d 

of
 C

om
m

un
ity

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
C

llr
 M

rs
 D

 C
 R

ey
no

ld
s 

an
d 

H
ea

d 
of

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l &
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 H

ea
lth

 

2 
S

 &
 T

 
A

nn
ua

l 

B
us

 S
tra

te
gy

 R
ef

er
en

ce
 G

ro
up

 
C

ab
in

et
 

C
llr

 N
 J

 G
uy

at
t 

C
llr

 N
 J

 G
uy

at
t 

2 
S

 &
 T

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

am
br

id
ge

sh
ire

 A
ge

 C
on

ce
rn

 L
ia

is
on

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 

C
ab

in
et

 
M

rs
 N

 F
 W

ag
st

af
fe

 
M

rs
 N

 F
 W

ag
st

af
fe

 
A

G
M

 - 
C

am
br

id
ge

 1
 

 
H

al
f Y

ea
rly

 M
tg

 - 
E

ly
 1

 
 

M
em

be
rs

 m
ee

tin
g/

 
Fo

ru
m

 –
 C

ha
tte

ris
 2

 
 

M
em

be
rs

 m
ee

tin
g/

 
Fo

ru
m

 - 
H

un
tin

gd
on

 1
 

S
 &

 T
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
am

br
id

ge
sh

ire
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
of

 L
oc

al
 C

ou
nc

ils
 –

 L
ia

is
on

 G
ro

up
 

C
ab

in
et

 
C

llr
 D

 P
 H

ol
le

y 
C

llr
 I 

C
 B

at
es

 
2 

at
 P

at
hf

in
de

r H
ou

se
, 

H
un

tin
gd

on
 

S
 &

 T
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
am

br
id

ge
sh

ire
 C

ha
m

be
r o

f C
om

m
er

ce
 –

  
H

un
tin

gd
on

sh
ire

 A
re

a 
C

ab
in

et
 

C
llr

 A
 H

an
sa

rd
 

C
llr

 A
 H

an
sa

rd
 

 
S

 &
 T

 
A

nn
ua

l 

C
am

br
id

ge
sh

ire
 C

ou
nc

ils
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
C

ab
in

et
 

Le
ad

er
 

of
 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il,

 
C

llr
s 

J 
A

 P
 E

dd
y,

 
N

 
J 

G
uy

at
t 

(S
ub

st
itu

te
:  

D
ep

ut
y 

Le
ad

er
) 

Le
ad

er
 

of
 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il,

 
C

llr
s 

J 
A

 P
 E

dd
y,

 
N

 
J 

G
uy

at
t 

(S
ub

st
itu

te
:  

D
ep

ut
y 

Le
ad

er
) 

C
ou

nt
y 

B
ra

nc
h 

m
ee

ts
 

5/
6 

tim
es

 p
er

 a
nn

um
 

S
 &

 T
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
am

br
id

ge
sh

ire
 C

ou
nt

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
– 

 
M

em
be

r F
or

um
 o

n 
W

as
te

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

C
ab

in
et

 
C

llr
 M

rs
 P

 J
 L

on
gf

or
d 

C
llr

 M
rs

 P
 J

 L
on

gf
or

d 
6 

S
 &

 T
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
am

br
id

ge
sh

ire
 E

nt
er

pr
is

e 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

(S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

 fo
r H

un
tin

gd
on

sh
ire

 E
nt

er
pr

is
e 

A
ge

nc
y)

 
C

ab
in

et
 

C
llr

 A
 H

an
sa

rd
 

C
llr

 A
 H

an
sa

rd
 

2 
S

 &
 T

 
A

nn
ua

l 

C
am

br
id

ge
sh

ire
 H

or
iz

on
s 

C
ab

in
et

 
C

llr
 D

 P
 H

ol
le

y 
C

llr
 I 

C
 B

at
es

 
 

S
 &

 T
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
am

br
id

ge
sh

ire
 M

us
eu

m
s 

A
dv

is
or

y 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

C
ab

in
et

 
C

llr
 J

 E
 G

ar
ne

r 
C

llr
 J

 E
 G

ar
ne

r 
1 

(A
G

M
) 

S
 &

 T
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
am

br
id

ge
sh

ire
 T

ra
ns

po
rt 

Fo
ru

m
 R

ef
er

en
ce

 G
ro

up
 

C
ab

in
et

 
C

llr
 N

 J
 G

uy
at

t 
C

llr
 N

 J
 G

uy
at

t 
1 

S
 &

 T
 

A
nn

ua
l 

79



 
N

om
in

at
in

g/
 

A
pp

oi
nt

in
g 

Pa
ne

l 

R
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
e(

s)
 fo

r 
20

05
/2

00
6 

R
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
e(

s)
 fo

r 
20

06
/2

00
7 

A
pp

ro
x 

N
o.

 o
f M

ee
tin

gs
 

Pe
r A

nn
um

 
Al

lo
w

an
ce

 P
ay

ab
le

 
S 

– 
Su

bs
is

te
nc

e 
T 

- T
ra

ve
lli

ng
 

Te
rm

 o
f 

Ap
po

in
tm

en
t 

  
 

2 
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

af
et

y 
Ta

sk
 G

ro
up

s 
– 

 
C

ab
in

et
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
H

un
tin

gd
on

 
 

C
llr

 T
 D

 S
an

de
rs

on
 

C
llr

 T
 D

 S
an

de
rs

on
 

4 
S

 &
 T

 
A

nn
ua

l 
 

N
or

th
 H

un
tin

gd
on

sh
ire

 A
re

a 
(Y

ax
le

y)
 

 
C

llr
 J

 S
 W

at
t 

C
llr

 J
 S

 W
at

t 
4 

S
 &

 T
 

A
nn

ua
l 

 
R

am
se

y 
 

C
llr

 P
 A

 S
w

al
es

 
C

llr
 P

 A
 S

w
al

es
 

4 
S

 &
 T

 
A

nn
ua

l 
 

S
t I

ve
s 

 
C

llr
 D

 B
 D

ew
 

C
llr

 D
 B

 D
ew

 
4 

S
 &

 T
 

A
nn

ua
l 

 
S

t N
eo

ts
 

 
C

llr
 D

 H
ar

ty
 

C
llr

 D
 H

ar
ty

 
4 

S
 &

 T
 

A
nn

ua
l 

 
V

io
le

nc
e 

 
C

llr
 J

 D
 F

el
l 

C
llr

 J
 D

 F
el

l 
4 

S
 &

 T
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

on
 T

re
as

ur
y 

M
an

ag
em

en
t M

at
te

rs
 

C
ab

in
et

 
C

llr
s 

K
 R

ey
no

ld
s,

 T
 V

 R
og

er
s 

an
d 

L 
M

 S
im

ps
on

 
C

llr
s 

K
 R

ey
no

ld
s,

 T
 V

 R
og

er
s 

an
d 

L 
M

 S
im

ps
on

 
3 

S
 &

 T
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ro

m
w

el
l M

us
eu

m
 M

an
ag

em
en

t C
tte

e 
C

ab
in

et
 

C
llr

s 
M

 
G

 
B

ak
er

 
an

d 
T 

D
 S

an
de

rs
on

 
C

llr
s 

M
 

G
 

B
ak

er
 

an
d 

T 
D

 S
an

de
rs

on
 

2 
S

 &
 T

 
A

nn
ua

l 

D
IA

L 
D

ru
gl

in
k 

C
ab

in
et

 
C

llr
 M

rs
 M

 W
he

el
er

 
C

llr
 M

rs
 M

 W
he

el
er

 
6 

S
 &

 T
 

A
nn

ua
l 

 E
as

t o
f E

ng
la

nd
 –

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
R

eg
io

na
l A

ss
em

bl
y 

C
ab

in
et

 
C

llr
 I 

C
 B

at
es

 
(S

ub
st

itu
te

s:
   

C
llr

s 
N

 J
 G

uy
at

t 
an

d 
L 

M
 S

im
ps

on
 a

nd
 

C
llr

 G
 H

ar
pe

r  
[L

ea
de

r o
f F

en
la

nd
 D

is
tri

ct
 

C
ou

nc
il]

) 

C
llr

 I 
C

 B
at

es
 

(S
ub

st
itu

te
s:

   
C

llr
s 

N
 J

 G
uy

at
t 

an
d 

L 
M

 S
im

ps
on

 a
nd

 
C

llr
 G

 H
ar

pe
r  

[L
ea

de
r o

f F
en

la
nd

 D
is

tri
ct

 
C

ou
nc

il]
) 

7/
8 

S
 &

 T
 

A
nn

ua
l 

R
eg

io
na

l T
ou

ris
m

 C
ou

nc
il 

C
ab

in
et

 
C

llr
 M

rs
 J

 C
ha

nd
le

r 
C

llr
 A

 H
an

sa
rd

 
3/

4 
S

 &
 T

 
A

nn
ua

l 
G

re
at

 F
en

 P
ro

je
ct

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

 
C

ab
in

et
 

C
llr

 N
 J

 G
uy

at
t 

C
llr

 N
 J

 G
uy

at
t 

12
 

S
 &

 T
 

A
nn

ua
l 

G
re

at
er

 C
am

br
id

ge
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t B

oa
rd

 
C

ab
in

et
 

C
llr

 D
 P

 H
ol

le
y 

C
llr

 I 
C

 B
at

es
 

 
S

 &
 T

 
A

nn
ua

l 
H

om
e 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t A

ge
nc

y 
– 

A
dv

is
or

y 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
C

ab
in

et
 

C
llr

 M
rs

 R
ey

no
ld

s 
 

C
llr

 M
rs

 R
ey

no
ld

s 
 

4/
5 

S
 &

 T
 

A
nn

ua
l 

H
un

tin
gd

on
 B

us
in

es
s 

A
ga

in
st

 C
rim

e 
C

ab
in

et
 

C
llr

 J
 M

 S
ad

le
r 

C
llr

 J
 M

 S
ad

le
r 

4 
S

 &
 T

 
A

nn
ua

l 
H

un
tin

gd
on

sh
ire

 C
iti

ze
ns

’ A
dv

ic
e 

B
ur

ea
ux

 
C

ab
in

et
 

C
llr

 
T 

V
 

R
og

er
s 

an
d 

M
r J

 C
 M

ug
gl

es
to

ne
 

C
llr

 
T 

V
 

R
og

er
s 

an
d 

M
r J

 C
 M

ug
gl

es
to

ne
 

4 
S

 &
 T

 
A

nn
ua

l 

H
un

tin
gd

on
sh

ire
 F

ed
er

at
io

n 
of

 V
ol

un
te

er
 B

ur
ea

ux
 

C
ab

in
et

 
C

llr
 J

 M
 S

ad
le

r 
C

llr
 J

 M
 S

ad
le

r 
4 

S
 &

 T
 

A
nn

ua
l 

H
un

tin
gd

on
sh

ire
 F

lo
od

 F
or

um
 

C
ab

in
et

 
C

llr
 I 

C
 B

at
es

 
C

llr
 P

 L
 E

 B
uc

kn
el

l 
2 

S
 &

 T
 

A
nn

ua
l 

 
O

&
S

 (P
&

F)
 

C
llr

 P
 A

 S
w

al
es

 
 

1 
S

 &
 T

 
A

nn
ua

l 
H

un
tin

gd
on

sh
ire

 H
ou

si
ng

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 *
 

 
C

ab
in

et
 

C
llr

s 
M

 G
 B

ak
er

, 
M

rs
 M

 B
an

er
je

e,
  

P
 L

 E
 B

uc
kn

el
l, 

J 
E

 G
ar

ne
r a

nd
 M

r J
 B

ur
ni

st
on

 

C
llr

s 
M

 G
 B

ak
er

, 
M

rs
 M

 B
an

er
je

e,
  

P
 L

 E
 B

uc
kn

el
l, 

K
 J

 C
hu

rc
hi

ll 
an

d 
M

r J
 B

ur
ni

st
on

 

8 
S

 &
 T

 
A

nn
ua

l 

H
un

tin
gd

on
sh

ire
 H

ou
si

ng
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 –

 G
ro

up
 S

tru
ct

ur
e*

* 
 

C
ab

in
et

 
 

 
 

S
 &

 T
 

A
nn

ua
l 

   
   

D
iv

er
sa

 (d
ev

el
op

m
en

t) 
 

M
r K

 F
le

m
in

g 
M

r K
 F

le
m

in
g 

5 
 

 
   

   
Lu

m
in

us
 (p

ar
en

t) 
 

C
llr

 C
 R

 H
ya

m
s 

C
llr

 C
 R

 H
ya

m
s 

5 
 

 
   

   
O

ak
 F

ou
nd

at
io

n 
(s

he
lte

re
d/

ch
ar

ita
bl

e)
   

 
 

C
llr

 M
rs

 M
 W

he
el

er
 

C
llr

 M
rs

 M
 W

he
el

er
 

3 
 

 
H

un
tin

gd
on

sh
ire

 (L
oc

al
) S

tra
te

gi
c 

Pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
 –

 
 

C
ab

in
et

 
 

 
 

S
 &

 T
 

A
nn

ua
l 

 
 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
Yo

un
g 

P
eo

pl
e 

 
- 

C
llr

 A
 H

an
sa

rd
 

6 
 

 
 

 
C

ul
tu

re
 a

nd
 L

ei
su

re
 

 
C

llr
 M

rs
 J

 C
ha

nd
le

r 
C

llr
 M

rs
 J

 C
ha

nd
le

r 
4 

 
 

 
 

E
co

no
m

ic
 F

or
um

 
 

C
llr

 A
 H

an
sa

rd
 

C
llr

 A
 H

an
sa

rd
 

8 
 

 
 

 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

t 
 

C
llr

 M
rs

 P
 J

 L
on

gf
or

d 
C

llr
 M

rs
 P

 J
 L

on
gf

or
d 

3 
 

 
 

 
H

ea
lth

, H
ou

si
ng

 &
 S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e 
 

C
llr

 M
rs

 D
 C

 R
ey

no
ld

s 
C

llr
 M

rs
 D

 C
 R

ey
no

ld
s 

 
 

 
 

 
Tr

an
sp

or
t a

nd
 A

cc
es

s 
 

C
llr

 N
 J

 G
uy

at
t 

C
llr

 N
 J

 G
uy

at
t 

1 
 

 
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

af
et

y 
B

oa
rd

 
C

ab
in

et
 

C
llr

 M
rs

 P
 J

 L
on

gf
or

d 
C

llr
 M

rs
 D

 C
 R

ey
no

ld
s 

3 
S

 &
 T

 
A

nn
ua

l 

80



 
N

om
in

at
in

g/
 

A
pp

oi
nt

in
g 

Pa
ne

l 

R
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
e(

s)
 fo

r 
20

05
/2

00
6 

R
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
e(

s)
 fo

r 
20

06
/2

00
7 

A
pp

ro
x 

N
o.

 o
f M

ee
tin

gs
 

Pe
r A

nn
um

 
Al

lo
w

an
ce

 P
ay

ab
le

 
S 

– 
Su

bs
is

te
nc

e 
T 

- T
ra

ve
lli

ng
 

Te
rm

 o
f 

Ap
po

in
tm

en
t 

  
 

3 
 

 
H

un
tin

gd
on

sh
ire

 L
ea

rn
in

g 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

C
ab

in
et

 
C

llr
 L

 M
 S

im
ps

on
 

C
llr

 L
 M

 S
im

ps
on

 
6 

S
 &

 T
 

A
nn

ua
l 

 
H

un
tin

gd
on

sh
ire

 S
tra

te
gi

c 
Pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 B
oa

rd
 

C
ab

in
et

 
C

llr
 D

 P
 H

ol
le

y 
(D

ep
ut

y:
  C

llr
 I 

C
 B

at
es

) 
C

llr
 I 

C
 B

at
es

 
(D

ep
ut

y:
  C

llr
 L

 M
 S

im
ps

on
) 

4/
5 

va
rio

us
 lo

ca
tio

ns
 –

 
ho

st
ed

 b
y 

m
ai

n 
pa

rtn
er

s 
S

 &
 T

 
A

nn
ua

l 

 
R

am
se

y 
A

re
a 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 B
oa

rd
 

C
ab

in
et

 
C

llr
 N

 J
 G

uy
at

t 
C

llr
 N

 J
 G

uy
at

t 
 

S
 &

 T
 

A
nn

ua
l 

 
To

w
n 

C
en

tre
 M

an
ag

em
en

t I
ni

tia
tiv

es
 –

 
 

C
ab

in
et

 
 

 
 

S
 &

 T
 

A
nn

ua
l 

 
 

H
un

tin
gd

on
 

 
C

llr
 J

 M
 S

ad
le

r 
(D

ep
ut

y:
  C

llr
 L

 M
 S

im
ps

on
) 

C
llr

 J
 M

 S
ad

le
r 

(D
ep

ut
y:

  C
llr

 L
 M

 S
im

ps
on

) 
12

 
 

 

 
 

 
R

am
se

y 
 

C
llr

 I 
R

 M
ui

r 
(D

ep
ut

y:
  o

ne
 v

ac
an

cy
) 

C
llr

 I 
R

 M
ui

r 
(D

ep
ut

y:
 C

llr
 P

 A
 S

w
al

es
 

12
 

 
 

 
 

S
t I

ve
s 

 
C

llr
 M

rs
 D

 R
ey

no
ld

s 
 

(D
ep

ut
y:

  C
llr

 D
 B

 D
ew

) 
C

llr
 D

 B
 D

ew
 

(D
ep

ut
y:

  M
rs

 D
 R

ey
no

ld
s)

 
12

 
 

 

 
 

S
t N

eo
ts

 
 

C
llr

 M
rs

 K
 P

 G
re

go
ry

 
(D

ep
ut

y:
  D

 H
ar

ty
) 

C
llr

 D
 H

ar
ty

 
(D

ep
ut

y:
 C

llr
 K

 J
 C

hu
rc

hi
ll)

 
12

 
 

 

H
un

tin
gd

on
sh

ire
 R

eg
io

na
l C

ol
le

ge
 B

oa
rd

 –
 u

nt
il 

1/
3/

06
 

C
ab

in
et

 
C

llr
 J

 M
 S

ad
le

r 
C

llr
 J

 M
 S

ad
le

r 
4 

S
 &

 T
 

3 
ye

ar
 te

rm
 

ex
pi

re
s 

1/
3/

20
06

 
H

un
tin

gd
on

sh
ire

 S
oc

ie
ty

 fo
r t

he
 B

lin
d 

C
ab

in
et

 
C

llr
 P

 L
 E

 B
uc

kn
el

l 
C

llr
 P

 L
 E

 B
uc

kn
el

l 
4 

at
 A

m
bu

ry
 R

oa
d 

D
ay

 
C

en
tre

, H
un

tin
gd

on
 

S
 &

 T
 

A
nn

ua
l 

In
te

rn
al

 D
ra

in
ag

e 
B

oa
rd

s 
- u

nt
il 

1.
6.

05
 

 
C

ab
in

et
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
A

lc
on

bu
ry

 a
nd

 E
lli

ng
to

n 
 

C
llr

s 
M

 G
 B

ak
er

, 
M

rs
 S

 J
 V

an
be

rg
en

.  
M

es
sr

s 
C

 A
lle

n,
 E

 K
 H

ea
ds

 a
nd

 
R

 H
 T

ur
pi

n.
 

C
llr

s 
M

 G
 B

ak
er

, 
K

 M
 B

ak
er

.  
M

es
sr

s 
C

 A
lle

n,
 E

 K
 H

ea
ds

 a
nd

 
R

 H
 T

ur
pi

n.
 

2 
S

 &
 T

 
3 

ye
ar

 te
rm

 
co

m
m

en
ci

ng
 

Ju
ne

 2
00

5 

 
B

en
w

ic
k 

 
M

r I
 L

ac
k 

M
r I

 L
ac

k 
2 

S
 &

 T
 

3 
ye

ar
 te

rm
 

co
m

m
en

ci
ng

 
Ju

ne
 2

00
5 

 
B

lu
nt

is
ha

m
 

 
M

r I
 L

ac
k 

M
r I

 L
ac

k 
2 

S
 &

 T
 

3 
ye

ar
 te

rm
 

co
m

m
en

ci
ng

 
Ju

ne
 2

00
5 

 
C

on
in

gt
on

 a
nd

 H
ol

m
e 

 
C

llr
s 

P
 G

 M
itc

he
ll 

an
d 

J 
S

 W
at

t 
to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 M

r C
 A

lle
n 

C
llr

s 
P

 G
 M

itc
he

ll 
an

d 
J 

S
 W

at
t 

to
ge

th
er

 w
ith

 M
r C

 A
lle

n 
1/

2 
S

 &
 T

 
3 

ye
ar

 te
rm

 
co

m
m

en
ci

ng
 

Ju
ne

 2
00

5 
 

R
am

se
y 

Fi
rs

t 
 

(H
ol

lo
w

) 
 

M
r I

 L
ac

k 
M

r I
 L

ac
k 

2 
S

 &
 T

 
3 

ye
ar

 te
rm

 
co

m
m

en
ci

ng
 

Ju
ne

 2
00

5 
 

R
am

se
y 

Fo
ur

th
  

 
(M

id
dl

e 
M

oo
r)

 
 

C
llr

 P
 A

 S
w

al
es

 a
nd

 M
r I

 L
ac

k 
C

llr
 P

 A
 S

w
al

es
 a

nd
 M

r I
 L

ac
k 

2 
S

 &
 T

 
3 

ye
ar

 te
rm

 
co

m
m

en
ci

ng
 

Ju
ne

 2
00

5 
 

R
am

se
y,

 U
pw

oo
d 

an
d 

G
re

at
 R

av
el

ey
 

 
C

llr
s 

J 
T 

B
el

l 
an

d 
P

 A
 S

w
al

es
 

an
d 

M
r C

 A
lle

n 
C

llr
s 

J 
T 

B
el

l a
nd

 P
 A

 S
w

al
es

 a
nd

 
M

r C
 A

lle
n 

2 
S

 &
 T

 
3 

ye
ar

 te
rm

 
co

m
m

en
ci

ng
 

Ju
ne

 2
00

5 
 

S
aw

try
 

 
C

llr
s 

J 
E

 G
ar

ne
r a

nd
 

R
 G

 T
up

lin
,  

M
r C

 A
lle

n,
  *

**
 

C
ha

irm
an

 o
f S

aw
try

 P
ar

is
h 

C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

M
rs

 J
 D

ay
 

C
llr

s 
J 

E
 G

ar
ne

r a
nd

 R
 G

 T
up

lin
,  

M
r C

 A
lle

n,
  *

**
 C

ha
irm

an
 o

f 
S

aw
try

 P
ar

is
h 

C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

M
rs

 J
 

D
ay

 

1 
S

 &
 T

 
3 

ye
ar

 te
rm

 
co

m
m

en
ci

ng
 

Ju
ne

 2
00

5 

 
S

ut
to

n 
an

d 
M

ep
al

 
 

M
r I

 L
ac

k 
M

r I
 L

ac
k 

2 
S

 &
 T

 
3 

ye
ar

 te
rm

 
co

m
m

en
ci

ng
 

Ju
ne

 2
00

5 

81



 
N

om
in

at
in

g/
 

A
pp

oi
nt

in
g 

Pa
ne

l 

R
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
e(

s)
 fo

r 
20

05
/2

00
6 

R
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
e(

s)
 fo

r 
20

06
/2

00
7 

A
pp

ro
x 

N
o.

 o
f M

ee
tin

gs
 

Pe
r A

nn
um

 
Al

lo
w

an
ce

 P
ay

ab
le

 
S 

– 
Su

bs
is

te
nc

e 
T 

- T
ra

ve
lli

ng
 

Te
rm

 o
f 

Ap
po

in
tm

en
t 

  
 

4 
 

 
Th

e 
R

am
se

y 
 

 
C

llr
s 

E
 R

 B
ut

le
r, 

P
 A

 S
w

al
es

 
an

d 
M

r I
 L

ac
k 

 

C
llr

s 
E

 R
 B

ut
le

r, 
P

 A
 S

w
al

es
 a

nd
 

M
r I

 L
ac

k 
 

1 
S

 &
 T

 
3 

ye
ar

 te
rm

 
co

m
m

en
ci

ng
 

Ju
ne

 2
00

5 
 

W
ar

bo
ys

, S
om

er
sh

am
 a

nd
 P

id
le

y 
 

C
llr

s 
M

 F
 N

ew
m

an
, J

 T
ay

lo
r a

nd
 

M
r I

 L
ac

k 
 

C
llr

s 
M

 F
 N

ew
m

an
, J

 T
ay

lo
r a

nd
 

M
r I

 L
ac

k 
 

2/
3 

S
 &

 T
 

3 
ye

ar
 te

rm
 

co
m

m
en

ci
ng

 
Ju

ne
 2

00
5 

 
W

hi
ttl

es
ey

 
 

M
r C

 A
lle

n 
M

r C
 A

lle
n 

4 
S

 &
 T

 
3 

ye
ar

 te
rm

 
co

m
m

en
ci

ng
 

Ju
ne

 2
00

5 
 

W
oo

dw
al

to
n 

 
C

llr
 J

 T
 B

el
l 

C
llr

 J
 T

 B
el

l 
1/

2 
S

 &
 T

 
3 

ye
ar

 te
rm

 
co

m
m

en
ci

ng
 

Ju
ne

 2
00

5 
Li

ttl
e 

G
ra

ns
de

n 
A

er
od

ro
m

e 
C

on
su

lta
tiv

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
C

ab
in

et
 

C
llr

 M
rs

 B
 E

 B
od

di
ng

to
n 

C
llr

 M
rs

 B
 E

 B
od

di
ng

to
n 

2 
S

 &
 T

 
A

nn
ua

l 
Lo

ca
l G

ov
er

nm
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

– 
 

C
ab

in
et

 
 

 
 

S
 &

 T
 

A
nn

ua
l 

 
G

en
er

al
 A

ss
em

bl
y 

 
Le

ad
er

 o
f t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
Le

ad
er

 o
f t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
 

 
 

 
R

ur
al

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 
 

C
llr

 J
 A

 P
 E

dd
y 

C
llr

 J
 A

 P
 E

dd
y 

2 
 

 
  

S
tra

te
gi

c 
A

vi
at

io
n 

S
pe

ci
al

 In
te

re
st

 G
ro

up
 

 
C

llr
 N

 J
 G

uy
at

t 
C

llr
 N

 J
 G

uy
at

t 
4 

 
 

M
id

dl
e 

Le
ve

l C
om

m
is

si
on

er
s 

– 
un

til
 1

.6
.0

8 
C

ab
in

et
 

M
rs

 J
 D

ay
 

M
rs

 J
 D

ay
 

2 
(a

nd
 A

nn
ua

l 
In

sp
ec

tio
n)

 
S

 &
 T

 
3 

ye
ar

 te
rm

 
co

m
m

en
ci

ng
 

Ju
ne

 2
00

5 
N

at
io

na
l A

ut
is

tic
 S

oc
ie

ty
 

C
ab

in
et

 
C

llr
 M

rs
 C

ha
nd

le
r 

C
llr

 M
rs

 C
ha

nd
le

r 
3 

S
 &

 T
 

A
nn

ua
l 

N
at

io
na

l 
S

ai
lin

g 
A

ca
de

m
y 

P
ro

je
ct

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 a

t 
G

ra
fh

am
 

W
at

er
 C

en
tre

 
C

ab
in

et
 

M
r A

 H
 D

ub
er

ly
 

M
r A

 H
 D

ub
er

ly
 

6 
at

 G
ra

fh
am

 
S

 &
 T

 
A

nn
ua

l 

O
xm

oo
r C

om
m

un
ity

 A
ct

io
n 

G
ro

up
 (O

C
A

G
) 

C
ab

in
et

 
C

llr
 L

 M
 S

im
ps

on
 

C
llr

 L
 M

 S
im

ps
on

 
 

S
 &

 T
 

A
nn

ua
l 

O
xm

oo
r O

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 F
or

um
 

C
ab

in
et

 
C

llr
 L

 M
 S

im
ps

on
 

C
llr

 L
 M

 S
im

ps
on

 
 

S
 &

 T
 

A
nn

ua
l 

P
en

si
on

s 
C

on
su

lta
tiv

e 
G

ro
up

 
C

ab
in

et
 

C
llr

 T
 V

 R
og

er
s 

C
llr

 T
 V

 R
og

er
s 

2/
3 

S
 &

 T
 

A
nn

ua
l 

P
ol

ic
e 

Lo
ca

l C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

G
ro

up
s 

– 
 

C
ab

in
et

 
 

 
 

S
 &

 T
 

A
nn

ua
l 

 
H

un
tin

gd
on

 
 

C
llr

 J
 D

 F
el

l 
on

e 
va

ca
nc

y 
3 

 
 

 
P

et
er

bo
ro

ug
h 

(S
ou

th
) 

 
C

llr
 M

rs
 M

 B
an

er
je

e 
C

llr
 M

rs
 M

 B
an

er
je

e 
3 

 
 

 
S

t I
ve

s 
 

C
llr

 M
rs

 J
 C

ha
nd

le
r 

C
llr

 M
rs

 J
 C

ha
nd

le
r 

4 
 

 
 

S
t N

eo
ts

 
 

M
r R

 E
 B

ar
ne

s 
M

r R
 E

 B
ar

ne
s 

3/
4 

 
 

R
ai

l P
ol

ic
y 

(S
er

vi
ce

 A
dv

is
or

y)
 G

ro
up

 
C

ab
in

et
 

C
llr

 N
 J

 G
uy

at
t a

nd
 

H
ea

d 
of

 P
la

nn
in

g 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

(o
r n

om
in

ee
) 

C
llr

 N
 J

 G
uy

at
t a

nd
 

H
ea

d 
of

 P
la

nn
in

g 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

(o
r n

om
in

ee
) 

2 
S

 &
 T

 
A

nn
ua

l 

R
ed

 T
ile

 W
in

d 
Fa

rm
 C

om
m

un
ity

 F
un

d 
C

ab
in

et
 

C
llr

 P
 L

 E
 B

uc
kn

el
l 

C
llr

 P
 L

 E
 B

uc
kn

el
l 

 
 

A
nn

ua
l 

R
eg

io
na

l T
ou

ris
m

 C
ou

nc
il 

– 
un

til
 2

00
8 

C
ab

in
et

 
- 

C
llr

 A
 H

an
sa

rd
 

3 
+ 

S
 &

 T
  

A
nn

ua
l 

R
oa

d 
S

af
et

y 
C

tte
es

 –
 

 
C

ab
in

et
 

 
 

 
S

 &
 T

 
A

nn
ua

l 

 
H

un
tin

gd
on

 a
nd

 G
od

m
an

ch
es

te
r A

re
a 

 
 

C
llr

s 
M

rs
 C

 A
 G

od
le

y,
  

C
 R

 H
ya

m
s 

an
d 

L 
M

 S
im

ps
on

 
C

llr
s 

M
rs

 C
 A

 G
od

le
y,

  
C

 R
 H

ya
m

s 
an

d 
L 

M
 S

im
ps

on
 

6 
 

 

 
N

or
m

an
 C

ro
ss

 A
re

a 
 

 
C

llr
s 

E
 R

 B
ut

le
r a

nd
 J

 S
 W

at
t 

C
llr

s 
E

 R
 B

ut
le

r a
nd

 J
 S

 W
at

t 
12

 
 

 
 

S
t. 

Iv
es

 A
re

a 
 

 
C

llr
s 

M
rs

 J
 C

ha
nd

le
r a

nd
  

T 
V

 R
og

er
s 

C
llr

s 
M

rs
 J

 C
ha

nd
le

r a
nd

  
T 

V
 R

og
er

s 
6 

 
 

S
t. 

N
eo

ts
 M

us
eu

m
 M

an
ag

em
en

t C
om

m
itt

ee
 

C
ab

in
et

 
C

llr
 A

 H
an

sa
rd

 
C

llr
 A

 H
an

sa
rd

 
6 

S
 &

 T
 

A
nn

ua
l 

S
t. 

N
eo

ts
 V

ol
un

te
er

 B
ur

ea
u 

M
an

ag
em

en
t C

om
m

itt
ee

 
C

ab
in

et
 

C
llr

 M
rs

 K
 P

 G
re

go
ry

 
C

llr
 M

rs
 K

 P
 G

re
go

ry
 

5 
&

 A
G

M
 

S
 &

 T
 

A
nn

ua
l 

82



 
N

om
in

at
in

g/
 

A
pp

oi
nt

in
g 

Pa
ne

l 

R
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
e(

s)
 fo

r 
20

05
/2

00
6 

R
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
e(

s)
 fo

r 
20

06
/2

00
7 

A
pp

ro
x 

N
o.

 o
f M

ee
tin

gs
 

Pe
r A

nn
um

 
Al

lo
w

an
ce

 P
ay

ab
le

 
S 

– 
Su

bs
is

te
nc

e 
T 

- T
ra

ve
lli

ng
 

Te
rm

 o
f 

Ap
po

in
tm

en
t 

  
 

5 
 

Tr
us

te
es

 o
f K

im
bo

lto
n 

S
ch

oo
l F

ou
nd

at
io

n 
C

ab
in

et
 

M
rs

 A
 H

ol
le

y 
C

llr
 J

 A
 G

ra
y 

3 
S

 &
 T

 
3 

yr
 te

rm
 

ex
pi

re
s 

1.
7.

20
08

 
Ya

xl
ey

 Y
ou

th
 W

or
k 

S
up

po
rt 

Fo
ru

m
 

C
ab

in
et

 
C

llr
 J

 S
 W

at
t 

C
llr

 J
 S

 W
at

t 
6 

at
 Y

ax
le

y 
S

 &
 T

 
A

nn
ua

l 
H

un
tin

gd
on

 F
re

em
an

s’
 C

ha
rit

y 
C

ab
in

et
 

 
C

llr
 J

 D
 F

el
l 

11
 

S
 &

 T
 

3 
yr

 te
rm

 
ex

pi
re

s 
8.

6.
20

09
 

  * 
Fi

ve
 re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
es

 to
 b

e 
ap

po
in

te
d 

di
re

ct
ly

 b
y 

th
e 

D
is

tri
ct

 C
ou

nc
il 

fro
m

 w
hi

ch
 o

ne
 w

ill
 b

e 
no

m
in

at
ed

 to
 b

y 
th

e 
H

H
P

 B
oa

rd
 to

 L
um

in
us

 a
nd

 th
e 

O
ak

 F
ou

nd
at

io
n 

**
 

Fi
ve

 re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

es
 to

 b
e 

ap
po

in
te

d 
di

re
ct

ly
 b

y 
th

e 
H

H
P

 B
oa

rd
 to

 L
um

in
us

 a
nd

 th
e 

O
ak

 F
ou

nd
at

io
n.

 
**

* 
N

om
in

at
io

n 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

C
ha

irm
an

 o
f S

aw
try

 P
ar

is
h 

C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

no
t n

am
ed

 in
di

vi
du

al
. 

83



84

This page is intentionally left blank


